Sitronix Tg h lpgy Corporation
2019 Annual Shareho. é’Meeting Minutes

Time: 9:00 a.m., June, 26, 2019 (Wednesday)

Place: 2F., No.3, Taiyuan 1* St., Zhunei City, Hsinchu County 302, Taiwan, R.O.C (Tai Yuen
Hi-Tech Industrial Park Third-Phrase Multi-Functional Conference).

Attendants : All shareholders and their proxy holders ,representing 95,124,848 shares (Including
83,455,272 shares voted via electronic),or 79.12% of the total 120,222,581

outstanding shares.
Others Present : Mr.Cheng Chih Lin of Deloitte & Touche

Director Present : Vincent Mao, I-His Cheng , Cheng-Chieh Dai (Independent Director& the
convenor of the Audit Committee), Chieh-Sheng Hsiao (Independent Director&
Audit Committee), Yu-Nu Lin (Independent Director& Audit Committee)

Chairman : Mr.Vincent Mao, the chairman of the Board of Directors
Minute Recorder : Shu-Fang Xu

I.  Chairman announced commencement.(The aggregate shareholding of the shareholders
present in person or by proxy constitutes a quorum. The Chairman called the meeting to

order.)
II. Chairman’s Address (omitted)
III. Report Items
1. To report the business of 2018 (Attachment 1)
2. 2018 Audit Committee’s Review Report (Attachment 2)

3. To report 2018 employees’ profit sharing bonus and directors and supervisors’

compensation

Explanation: Accroding to the Article of Incorporation, the proposal of distribution of
directors and supervisors was NT$22,689,805, while the proposal of
distribution of the employees was NT$75,632,684; both shall be paid in cash.



IV. Matters for Ratification

1. To approve 2018 Business Report and Financial Statements
(Proposed by the Board of Directors)

Explanation:

(1) 2018 financial statements, including the balance sheets, statements of comprehensive
income, statements of changes in equity, and statements of cash flows, were audited by
independent auditors, Mr. Cheng Chih Lin and Mr. Yu Feng Huang, of Deloitte & Touche.
Business Report and Financial Statements also have been examined by the supervisors of

the Company.

(2) For the 2018 business report, independent auditors’ report and the aforementioned

financial statements, please refer to Attachment 1, 3, and 4o
(3) Please approve.
Resolved, that the above proposal be and hereby was approved as proposed.

Voting Results: .
Shares represented at the time of voting: 95,124,848 (83,455,272)*

Voting Results* AR tl;ﬁ;:;irz?; ;(isented
Votes in favor: 82,901,713 votes (71,642,793 votes) 87.15%
Votes against: 12~1V4‘/1 votes (  12,141votes) 0.01%
Votes invalid: " 0 votes ( 0 votes) 0.00%
Votes abstained: 12,210,994 votes (11,800,338 votes) 12.83%

* Including votes casted electrbnically (numbers in brackets)

2. To approve the Proposal for the 2018 Profit distribution
(Proposed by the Board of Directors)

Explanation:

(1) 2018 Earnings Distribution Proposal for of the company has been approved by the
Directors on March 15, 2019, Each common share holder will be entitled to receive a cash
dividend of NT$5 per share.

(2) The ex-dividend date will be decided by the Board of Directors meeting after approval by
the competent authority. Allotment of fractional shares (less than one share) shall be paid

in cash and the cash dividend distribution will be calculated to the nearest NT dollar.
(3) The 2018 Earnings Distribution Proposal, is please refer to Attachment 5.

(4) Please approve.



Resolved, tha/t the above proposal be and hereby was approved as proposed.
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Voting Results:
Shares represented at the time of voting: 95,124,848 (83,455,272)*

Voting Resglis* represZ:ltoefdﬂslliz:z E;lresent
Votes in favor: 83,075,713votes (71,816,793 votes) 87.33%
Votes against: 12,140 votes  ( 12,140 votes) 0.01%-
Votes invalid: ' O’_,votes ( 0 votes) 0.00%
Votes abstained: 12,036,995 votes (11,626,339 votes) 12.65%

* Including votes casted electronically (numbers in brackets)

V.Proposed Resolutions
1~ Amendments to the company’s Articles of Incorporation

(Proposed by the Board of Directors) .~

Explanation:

(1) In order to conform to the amendments of relevant laws and regulations and to the accrual
requirement of the Company, the Company plans to amend the Company’s "Articles of

Incorporation”..

(2) Comparison Table for the Articles of Incorporation Before and After Revision, is please

refer to Attachment 6.
(3) Please discuss.

Resolved, that the above proposal be and hereby was approved as proposed.

Voting Résults:
Shares represented at the time of voting: 95,124,848 (83,455,272)*
. % of the total
E3
Voting Results represented share present
Votes in favor: 83,075,696 votes (71,81 6,776 votes) 87.33%
Votes against: 12,158 votes  ( 12,158,=votes) 0.01%_~
Votes invalid: 0 votes ( 0 votes) 0.00%,_~
Votes abstained: 12,036,994 votes (11,626,338  votes) 12.65%

. < . " P
* Including votes casted electronically (numbers in brackets)
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2 ~ Amendments to the company’s Procedures for Acquisition or Disposal of Assets and
the Procedures for Financial Derivatives Transactions .

(Proposed by the Board of Directors)._-

Explanation:/

7

(1) Pursuant to the order of the Financial Supervisory Commission's letter No. 10703410172
on November 26, 2018, the Company is proposed to amend the provisions of Procedures
for Acquisition or Disposal of Assets and the Procedures for Financial Derivatives

Transactions. p

(2) The comparison tables of the Procedures for Acquisition or Disposal of Assets and the
Procedures for Financial Derivatives Transactions Before and After Revision, is please

refer to Attachment 7 and 8’./..
(3) Please discuss, ~

Resolved, that the above proposal be and hereby was approved as proposed.
Voting Results: S
Shares represented at the time of voting: 95,124,848 (83,455,272)*

Voting Resplts® repres(?ntoefdﬂ;}elat:fgresent
Votes in favor: 83,075,695 votes (71,816,775 votes) 87.33% -
Votes against: 12,159 votes ( 12,15§ votes) 0.01%
Votes invalid: 0 votes ( 0 votes) 0.00%.
Votes abstained: 12,036,994 votes (1 1,626,338 votes) 12.65%,

* Including votes casted electrdnically (numbers in ‘brackets)

3~ Amendments to the company’s Procedures for Making Outward Loans to Others and
the Procedures for Endorsement and Guarantee

(Proposed by the Board of Directors)
Explanation:

(1) Pursuant to the order of the Financial Supervisory Commission's letter No. 1080304826 on
March 7, 2019, the Company is proposed to amend the provisions of Procedures for

Making Outward Loans to Others and the Procedures for Endorsement and Guarantee.

(2) The comparison tables of the Procedures for Making Outward Loans to Others and the
Procedures for Endorsement and Guarantee Before and After Revision, is please refer to

Attachment 9 and 10. -

(3) Please discuss.



Resolved, that the above proposal be and hereby was approved as proposed.

Voting Results:

Shares represented at the time of voting: 95,124,848 (83,455,272)*

Voting Results*

% of the total
represented share present

Votes in favor: 83,075,056 votes (71,816,136 votes) 87.33%
Votes against: 12,161 votes  ( 12,161 votes) 0.01%
Votes invalid: 0 votes ( 0.00%
Votes abstained: 12,037,631 votes (11,626,975 votes) 12.65%

* Including votes casted electronically (numbers in brackets)

VI. Extemporary Motions : N?,e.

VII. Meeting Adjourned : 9:12a.m.
/




Attachment 1

Sitronix Technology Corp.

Business Report
1. 2018 Business Report

(1) Business Plan Implementation Results

The consolidated net revenue in 2018 was approrignailT$10,330,000,000; it
increased by 9.54% compared to 2017. The operaghgrofit was NT$1,042,514,000; the
net profit after tax was NT$1,013,820,000 and theniegs per share after tax was NT$7.03.
In addition to the favorable growth of mobile phgreducts, many other product lines also
achieved breakthrough performance.

In the relatively stable feature phone market, dBitt continues to successfully
consolidate its leading position in feature phonspldy driver IC (DDI) chip with a
zero-capacitance differentiation strategy. In theart phone field, the sales volume has
grown smoothly, and the company will continue tanleh zero-capacitance versions with
different resolutions to successfully achieve thadiits of product differentiation. Under the
continuous strategic promotion of the company, specifications and performance of the
products have been highly recognized by customers.

Besides the mobile phones, Sitronix has also coetirio successfully develope various
products such as in-vehicle DDI, industrial DDIwsy management control chips, ambient
light sensing chip, distance sensing chip, MEMSss®nchip, etc. The product introduction
of the big brand factory shows that the producteettged by the company are highly
competitive and have high growth potential in tbhufe. The above product lines have been
robust in many niche applications and continuegtnuize the company's product portfolio,
creating a significant contribution to to the comya stable gross margin.

(2) The Company’s 2018 amd 2017 Profitability Anlgsis

Year 2018 2017

ltems (note 2) (note 2)
Reutrn on Total Asset6% ) 13.26% 12.42%
Return on Equit (%) 19.87% 17.79%

. . o Operating Income 86.71% 70.82%
Paid —in Capital Ratid %) Pre-tax Income 93.32% 82.00%
Net Margin (%) 9.81% 9.44%
Basic Earnings Per Share(yuan)(note 1) 7.03 7.32

Note 1: This is calculated based on the numbereifted average shares issued in the current year.
Note 2: The period when the International FinanBi@porting Standards for consolidated financial
information was adopted.



2. Future Prospects for the Company

In terms of display driver IC (DDI) chips, the coamy will continue its long-term innovative
research and development for small and medium-smeducts. In response to fierce market
competition, the company has successfully devel@metintroduced a zero-capacitor solution to
major international manufacturers, maintaining e growth and stability as well as
profitability through product differentiation. Iiné future, the company will continue to develop
DDI products and gradually step into the high-endrkat while consolidating the existing
low-end market. In addition to the development dfigher resolution format beyond amorphous
germanium (asSi) and into low-temperature polysilidLTPS), the new products will also
include technologies such as TDDI touch displayegmated chips. Overall, the company’s
diversification strategy will include cross-indystinnovation, applications, customer portfolio,
different resolutions, silicon materials, toucheigutation solutions, and many other aspects.

Non-DDI products, such as MCU, power managementrgbchip, ambient light sensing
chip, distance sensing chip, MEMS sensing chip,, eite also essential to the company’s
long-term development. The company is optimistiowbfuture market trends and towards
achieving excellent gross profit performance, ancommitted to utilizing product differentiation.

In the future, the company will continue to domeatarious industries with high revenue
growth and high gross profit to achieve balanceeeigment. Furthermore, it will maintain and
enhance its profitability by simultaneously devehgptechnology, nurturing talents, improving
cost control, optimizing organizational effectivesend achieving balanced development.

Overall, the company will continue to rely on thalective efforts of its team, expand its
customer base and new application markets to aehiev best results. The company is confident
that it will grow steadily and share a remarkabperating performance with its shareholders,
customers, and employees. Finally, thank you aigeatl shareholders for their undending support

and encouragement.



Attachment 2
Sitronix Technology Corp.

2018 Audit Committee’s Review Report

The undersignedeloitte & Touche Taipei, Taiwan Republic of Chileas duly
audited the Operating Report, Financial Statemeatsl Profit Distribution
Proposed prepared by the supervisor for the yea8,26nd issued the recorded
unqualified audit report. All statistical forms aftreview by the Supervisor shall
be compiled in accordance with the law. Any disarepes shall be reported to

the superior under the Securities and Exchangeafck,Company Act.

With respect,
Sitronix Technology Corp. 2019 Shareholders’ Megt

Sitronix Technology Corp.
Chairman of the Audit Committee: Cheng-Chieh Dai

March 15, 2019



Attachment 3

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Board of Directors and the Shareholders
Sitronix Technology Corp.

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statésr&rSitronix Technology Corp. (the
Company), which comprise the balance sheets agoémber 31, 2018 and 2017, the statements of
comprehensive income, changes in equity and cesls flor the years then ended, and the notes to
the financial statements, including a summary ghisicant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statetagmesent fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Company as of DecemberZBil8 and 2017, and its financial performance
and its cash flows for the years then ended inrdecee with the Regulations Governing the
Preparation of Financial Reports by Securitiesdssu

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with the Réigns Governing Auditing and Attestation of
Financial Statements by Certified Public Accourdaand auditing standards generally accepted in
the Republic of China. Our responsibilities underse standards are further described in the
Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Rincial Statements Section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with teriNof Professional Ethics for Certified Public
Accountant of the Republic of China, and we hav#lad our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements. We believethieadudit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis far @pinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in oofiegsional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the financial statements for the ymadted December 31, 2018. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the firgrstatements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a sepangtéan on these matters.

The key audit matters for the Company’s parent amgpnly financial statements for the year
ended December 31, 2018 are stated as follows:

Recognition of sales revenue

The Company s main source of revenue comes from the sale ofaneahips. For the year ended
December 31, 2018, the revenue recognized was BU$,697 thousand, please refer to Notes 4 and
27 for information of accounting policy of revengeognition. Due to the market rebound of
memory chips, the Company released certain satiesoby temporarily increasing the credit line.

As such, this gives the rise to the potential abkverstating sales. We therefore considered the
validity of occurrence of sales as a key audit erdtir the year ended December 31, 2018.



We have assessed that the customers of the Comperse annual revenue growth rates for 2018
have changed significantly to be subject to thie efsvalidity of revenue recognition. Thereforeyou
audit procedures performed with respect to thestomers to confirm the validity of revenue
recognition of the Company include, but are notitkeh to, the following:

1. We understood and tested the effectiveneseaddékign and implementation of the key internal
controls over revenue recognition;

2. We sampled and inspected the validity of th&kgemund information of customers that had
significant changes in the annual sales revenuetbrmate and understood the reasonableness of
such customers’ credit terms;

3. We performed on-site interviews by sampling anderstood the business process and relevance
of sales revenue;

4. We sampled and inspected whether an originahase order existed for each sale and was
approved appropriately;

5. We inspected product names and quantities oficatibns of manufacturing, invoices and goods
receipt and inspected the amounts to ensure they semsistent.

6. We inspected the reasonableness of collectiaeadunts receivable and whether the collection
amounts and counterparties were consistent witheenue recognized.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged thiGovernance for the Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation amgfesentation of the financial statements in
accordance with the Regulations Governing the Pagipa of Financial Reports by Securities
Issuers, and for such internal control as managedetarmines is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are fremfmaterial misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, managensamsiponsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as@pe, matters related to going concern and using

the going concern basis of accounting unless manageeither intends to liquidate the Company or

to cease operations, or has no realistic alteradis to do so.

Those charged with governance, including the axgidiimittee, are responsible for overseeing the
Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurdrmg avhether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether ddeatal or error, and to issue an auditors’ report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurarediigh level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with thetiggdstandards generally accepted in the Republic
of China will always detect a material misstatemenén it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if,vigtlially or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisionsefs taken on the basis of these financial
statements.



As part of an audit in accordance with the audistepdards generally accepted in the Republic of
China, we exercise professional judgment and miaipti@fessional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

1.

Identify and assess the risks of material misstant of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedugsponsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to mewa basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting fraaadris higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentibamissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal controlvate to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumsgitee not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s maécontrol.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accountingipsligsed and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by managemen

Conclude on the appropriateness of managemeas#'sf the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whatheaterial uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt o& @ompany’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertagxigts, we are required to draw attention in
our auditors’ report to the related disclosurethanfinancial statements or, if such disclosures ar
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusiars based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditors’ report. However, faetavents or conditions may cause the Company
to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structurecmdent of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statemeuesent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient and appropriate audit evideregarding the financial information of the
entities or business activities within the Compamgxpress an opinion on the financial
statements. We are responsible for the directigperwision and performance of the audit. We
remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governaagarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant afiddings, including any significant deficiencies i
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance avgtatement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding indepeneleaned to communicate with them alll

relationships and other matters that may reasor@btiought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those chargéudgavernance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of tinencial statements for the year ended December
31, 2018 and are therefore the key audit matteesd@gcribe these matters in our auditors’ report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclesalvout the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter shouldenoommunicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonaldyected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.



The engagement partners on the audit resultinigisniidependent auditors’ report are Cheng
Chih Lin and Yu Feng Huang.

Deloitte & Touche
Taipei, Taiwan
Republic of China

March 15, 2019

Notice to Readers

The accompanying financial statements are interaatdylto present the financial position, financial
performance and cash flows in accordance with aotiag principles and practices generally accepted
in the Republic of China and not those of any ophesdictions. The standards, procedures and
practices to audit such financial statements amséhgenerally applied in the Republic of China.

For the convenience of readers, the independernita@sdreport and the accompanying financial
statements have been translated into English frarotiginal Chinese version prepared and used é th
Republic of China. If there is any conflict betwéesm English version and the original Chinese \anrsi
or any difference in the interpretation of the twarsions, the Chinese-language independent auditors
report and financial statements shall prevail.



SITRONIX TECHNOLOGY CORP.

PARENT COMPANY ONLY BALANCE SHEETS
DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents (Notes 4, 6 and 35)

Financial assets at fair value through profit @sle
current (Notes 4, 7 and 35)

Financial assets at fair value through other cohrgmsive
income - current (Notes 4, 8 and 35)

Available-for-sale financial assets - current (ofe 10
and 35)

Financial assets at amortized cost - current (N$t&s35
and 37)

Debt investments with no active market - currenat@s 4,
13,35 and 37)

Notes receivables and trade receivable (Notes 4anii435)

Notes receivable and trades receivable from relpdeties
(Notes 4, 35 and 36)

Other receivables (Notes 14 and 35)

Other receivables from related parties (Notes 2538)

Inventories (Notes 4, 5 and 15)

Prepayments

Other current assets (Notes 20 and 35)

Total current assets

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Financial assets at fair value through profit @sle
non-current (Notes 4, 7 and 35)

Financial assets at fair value through other cohgmsive
income - non-current (Notes 4, 8 and 35)

Available-for-sale financial assets - non-currévivtes 4,
10 and 35)

Held-to-maturity financial assets - non-current {&&4, 11
and 35)

Financial assets at amortized cost - non-curreatg®N4, 9,
35 and 37)

Financial assets measured at cost - non-curreregNp 12
and 35)

Investment accounted for using the equity methoutébl 4,
16, 32 and 36)

Property, plant and equipment (Notes 4, 17 and 36)

Investment properties (Notes 4 and 18)

Intangible assets (Notes 4 and 19)

Other non-current assets (Notes 20, 33 and 35)

Total non-current assets

TOTAL

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofitla@cial statements.

2018 2017

Amount % Amount %
1,046,299 15 764,490 12
75,840 1 279,824 5
187,259 3 - -
- - 262,929 4
166,302 3 - -
- - 25,679 -
950,215 14 499,875 8
16,738 - 372,416 6
26,363 - 63,836 1
88,324 1 23,657 -
1,378,966 20 1,216,478 20
75,095 1 59,667 1
10,685 - 4,354 -
4,022,086 58 3,573,205 57
67,070 1 31,493 1
332,430 5 - -
- - 371,529 6
- - 30,499 -
31,386 - - -
- - 25,833 -
1,433,903 21 1,165,896 19
454,410 6 429,248 7
535,150 8 543,340 9
40,400 1 50,246 1
5,910 - 5,086 -
2,900,659 42 2,653,170 43
6,922,745 100 6,226,375 100

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Short-term borrowings (Notes 4, 21 and 35)

Financial liabilities at fair value through priofir loss -
current (Notes 4,7 and 35)

Trade payables (Notes 22 and 35)

Payables to related parties (Notes 35 and 36)

Accrued profit sharing to employees and compénsab
directors (Notes 28)

Other payables (Notes 23 and 35)

Other payables to related parties (Notes 35 and 36

Current tax liabilities (Notes 4 and 29)

Provisions - current (Notes 4 and 24)

Other current liabilities (Notes 23 and 35)

Total current liabilities

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Deferred tax liabilities (Notes 4 and 29)
Net defined benefit liabilities - non-current (st4 and 25)
Guarantee deposits (Notes 23, 33 and 36)

Total non-current liabilities
Total liabilities

EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY (Note
4, 26, 31 and 32)
Share capital
Ordinary shares
Capital surplus
Retained earnings
Legal reserve
Special reserve
Unappropriated earnings
Total retained earnings
Other equity
Exchange differences on translating the finarst@aiement
of foreign operations
Unrealized gain (loss) on financial assets atvalue
through other comprehensive income
Unrealized gain (loss) on available-for-sale ficiah
assets
Unrealized compensation of employees
Total other equity

Total equity

TOTAL

2018 2017
Amount % Amount %

445,368 6 $ - -
1,090 - 480 -
1,019,841 15 860,657 14
102,633 2 48,225 1
98,323 1 102,159 2
345,198 5 349,331 6
6,765 - 10,179 -
78,908 1 89,180 1
- - 5,089 -
37,634 1 10,832 -
2,135,760 31 1,476,132 24
610 - 576 -
51,318 1 57,555 1
22,791 - 12,453 -
74,719 1 70,584 1
2,210,479 32 1,546,716 25
1,202,226 17 1,205,176 19
761,304 11 785,875 13
875,493 13 788,177 13
26,644 - 8,728 -
2,124,198 31 1,969,197 31
3,026,335 44 2,766,102 44
(846) - (943) -
(251,101) (4) - -
- - (25,701) -
(25,652 - (50,850 1
(277,599 (4 (77,493 (€))
4,712,266 68 4,679,659 75
6,922,745 100 $ 6,226,375 100




SITRONIX TECHNOLOGY CORP.

PARENT COMPANY ONLY STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INC OME
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Except Earning (Loss) Per Share)

2018 2017
Amount % Amount %
NET REVENUE (Notes 4 and 27) $ 7,503,697 100 $ 7,553,780 100
OPERATING COSTS (Notes 4, 15, 28 and 36) 5,697,612 76 5,629,862 74
GROSS PROFIT 1,806,085 24 1,923,918 26
OPERATING EXPENSES (Notes 4, 28 and 36)
Selling and marketing expenses 164,179 2 98,946 1
General and administrative expenses 155,033 2 188,103 3
Research and development expenses 936,621 13 886,749 12
Total operating expenses 1,255,833 17 1,173,798 16
INCOME FROM OPERATIONS 550,252 7 750,120 10
NON-OPERATING INCOME AND EXPENSES
Other income (Notes 4, 28 and 36) 68,977 1 75,617 1
Other gains and losses (Notes 4 and 28) 10,388 - 39,618
Finance costs (Notes 4 and 28) (7,906) - (3,252) -
Share of profit of subsidiaries and associatesddlot
4 and 16) 282,885 4 98,421 1
Total non-operating income and expenses 354,344 5 210,404 2
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX FROM
CONTINUING OPERATIONS 904,596 12 960,524 12
INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Notes 4 and 29) 64,233 1 87,366 1
NET INCOME FOR THE YEAR 840,363 11 873,158 11

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to
profit or loss:
Remeasurement of defined benefit plans (Notes 4
and 25) 4,599 - (746) -
Unrealized loss on investments in equity
instruments at fair value through other
comprehensive income (86,278) Q) - -
Share of the other comprehensive loss of
associates accounted for using the equity
method (61,152) Q) - -
(Continued)



SITRONIX TECHNOLOGY CORP.

PARENT COMPANY ONLY STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INC OME
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Except Earning (Loss) Per Share)

2018 2017
Amount % Amount %
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to

profit or loss (Notes 4 and 26):
Exchange differences on translating foreign

operations $ 97 - $ (41) -
Unrealized gain (loss) on available-for-sale

financial assets - - (20,672) -

Unrealized gain (loss) on investments in debt

instruments at fair value through other

comprehensive income 251 - -
Share of the other comprehensive income

(loss) of associates accounted for using the

equity method (33 - 2,797 -
Other comprehensive income (loss) for the
year, net of income tax (142,516 2 (18,662 -
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR
THE YEAR $ 697,847 9 $ 854,49 _11
EARNINGS PER SHARE (Note 30)
Basic $ 7.03 $ 7.32
Diluted $ 6.94 $ 7.22

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the parent company only fistatel@ents.(Concluded)



SITRONIX TECHNOLOGY CORP.

PARENT COMPANY ONLY STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

BALANCE AT JANUARY 1, 2017
Appropriation of 2016 earnings

Legal reserve

Special reserve

Cash dividends distributed by the Company

Other changes in capital surplus
Changes in percentage of ownership interests isidialoies

Compensation costs of restricted shares for empikoye
Retirement of restricted shares for employees
Net income for the year ended December 31, 2017

Other comprehensive loss for year ended Decemb&037%, net of income
tax

Total comprehensive income for the year ended Dbeeidil, 2017
BALANCE AT JANUARY 1, 2017 AS RESTATED

EFFECT OF RETROSPECTIVE APPLICATION AND RETROSPEVWIEI
RESTATEMENT

BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31, 2017
Appropriation of 2017 earnings

Legal reserve

Special reserve.

Cash dividends distributed by the Company

Other changes in capital surplus
Changes in percentage of ownership interests isidialoies

Compensation cost of restricted shares for emptoyee
Restricted new shares not vested

Disposal of equity instruments at fair value throwgher comprehensive
income

Net income for the year ended December 31, 2018

Other comprehensive income (loss) for year endexeber 31, 2018, net
of income tax

Total comprehensive income (loss) for the year dridlecember 31, 2018

BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31, 2018

Other Equity (Notes 24, 26 and 31)

Unrealized Gain
(Loss) on Financial
Assets at Fair

Exchange Unrealized Gain Value Through
Share Capital (Note 26) Retained Earnings Differences on (Loss) from Other Unearned
Shares Capital Surplus Unappropriated Translating Available-for-sale Comprehensive Compensation of
(In Thousands) Amount (Notes 26 and 32) Legal Reserve Special reserve Earnings (Note 26) Foreign Operations  Financial Assets Income Employees Total Equity

120,638 $ 1,206,376 $ 811,101 $ 683,993 $ 21,364 $ 2,093,666 $ (902) % (7,826) $ - $ (120,394) $ 4,687,378

- - - 104,184 - (104,184) - - - - -

- - - - (12,636) 12,636 - - - - -
- - - - - (723,826) - - - - (723,826)
- - (14,006) - - (181,507) - - - - (195,513)

- - - - - - - - - 57,124 57,124

(120) (1,200) (11,220) - - - - - - 12,420 -

- - - - - 873,158 - - - - 873,158

- - - - - (749 (47 (17,879 - - (18,662

- - - - - 872,412 (41 (17,879 - - 854,496
120,518 1,205,176 785,875 788,177 8,728 1,969,197 (943) (25,701) - (50,850) 4,679,659

- - - - - 81,235 - 25,701 (106,939 - -
120,518 1,205,176 785,875 788,177 8,728 2,050,432 (943) - (106,936) (50,850) 4,679,659

- - - 87,316 - (87,316) - - - - -

- - - - 17,916 (17,916) - - - - -
- - - - - (662,847) - - - - (662,847)

- - 3,014 - - (70) - - - - 2,944
- - - - - - - - - (5,337) (5,337)

(295) (2,950) (27,585) - - - - - - 30,535 -

- - - - - (3,047) - - 3,047 - -

- - - - - 840,363 - - - - 840,363

- - - - - 4,599 97 - (147,212 - (142,519

- - - - - 844,962 97 - (147,212 - 697,847
120,223 $ 1,202,226 $ 761,304 $ 875,493 $ 26,644 $ 2,124,198 $ (849 $ - $ (251,10} $ (25,652 $ 4,712,266

The accompanying notes are an integral part op#inent company only financial statements.




SITRONIX TECHNOLOGY CORP.

PARENT COMPANY ONLY STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Income before income tax
Adjustments for:
Depreciation expense
Amortization expense
Impairment loss reversed on trade receivables

Net (gain) loss on fair value changes of finanaidets designated as at fair

value through profit or loss
Finance costs
Interest income
Dividend income
Compensation cost of share-based payment
Share of profits of associates
Loss (gain) on disposal of property, plant and popgnt
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale financiaets
Impairment loss on financial assets
Write-downs of inventories
Unrealized net loss (gain) on foreign currency excde
Deferred other revenue
Changes in operating assets and liabilities
Financial assets held for trading
Notes receivable and trade receivables
Receivables from related parties
Other receivables
Other receivables from related parties
Inventories
Prepayments
Other current assets
Notes payable and trade payables
Payables to related parties
Other payables
Other payables to related parties
Other current liabilities
Net defined benefit liabilities

Accrued profit sharing bonus to employees' comp@rsand remuneratio

of directors
Cash generated from operations
Interest received
Interest paid
Income tax paid

Net cash generated from operating activities
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Acquisition of financial assets at fair value thgbu
other comprehensive income

Disposal of financial assets at fair value throogter comprehensive income

Purchase of financial assets measured at cost

Proceeds from the return of capital of financiaeds carried at amortized cost

Acquisition of financial assets at fair value thgbuprofit or loss

2018 2017
904,596 960,524
120,078 102,717

24,133 19,562
- (2,494)
(17,410) 3,611
7,906 3,252
(17,285) (24,620)
(9,073) (9,873)
(5,337) 57,124
(282,885) (98,421)
3 (23)
- (56,374)
- 4,125
9,000 30,500
(3,876) 30,513
(644) (772)
- (36,556)
(462,625) (11,836)
349,875 47,501
38,941 2,191
(2,256) 1,254
(171,488) 7,168
(15,428) 10,558
(6,331) (1,584)
171,715 (230,096)
55,326 (21,660)
(4,678) 8,682
(3,414) 4,440
21,713 2,842
(1,638) (1,442)
(3,836 (19,736
695,082 781,077
15,816 24,941
(6,988) (3,252)
(74.47) (97.62)
629,439 705,145
(149,269) -
72,596 -
(344,502) -
203,879 -
(137,646) -

(Continued)



SITRONIX TECHNOLOGY CORP.

PARENT COMPANY ONLY STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Proceeds from disposal of financial assets awdire through profit or loss
Purchase of available-for-sale financial assets

Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale finargssets
Proceeds from sale of debt investments with novactiarket
Proceeds from sale of held-to-maturity financiaes
Acquisition of investments accounted for using elqelity method
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and eqgaigt
Increase in refundable deposits

Increase in other receivable from related parties

Purchase for intangible assets

Increase in prepayments for equipment

Dividends received

Net cash inflow on disposal of subsidiaries

Net cash used in investing activities
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from short-term borrowings
Repayments of short-term borrowings
Proceeds from guarantee deposits received
Cash dividends distributed
Net cash used in financing activities

EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES ON THE BALANCE OFAGH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS HELD IN FOREIGN CURRENCIES

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE BEGINNING OF THE EAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE YEAR

2018 2017

$ 455322 $ -
- (544,749)

- 392,485

- 19,872

- 100,000
(104,182) (338,051)
(137,053) (97,091)

- 1,292

(664) (934)
(62,466) (20,000)
(14,287) (27,179)

(160) -
65,633 115,737

5,000 -
(147,799 (398,618

2,743,106 -

(2,296,153) -
10,338 1,324
(662,847 (723,825
(205,556 (722,502
5,725 (27,152
281,809 (443,129)
764,490 1,207,619
$ 1046299 $ 764490

The accompanying notes are an integral part gpénent company only financial statements.

(Concluded)



Attachment 4

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Board of Directors and the Shareholders
Sitronix Technology Corp.

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Sitronix TecBoopa@nd its
subsidiaries (the Group), which comprise the balance sheets as of De8a&ni@t8 and 2017, the
related consolidated statements of comprehensive income, changes in equatshatholes for the
years then ended, and the notes to the consolidated financial statements, includingeysof
significant accounting policies (collectively referred to as the “canfest@ld financial statements”).

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements presgntrfall material

respects, the consolidated financial position of the Group as of December 31, 2018 and 2017, and its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for thehgraended in

accordance with the Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial RgpBesuities Issuers,

and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), InternationabAting Standards (IAS),

IFRIC Interpretations (IFRIC), and SIC Interpretations (SIC) endaasd issued into effect by the
Financial Supervisory Commission of the Republic of China.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with the Regulations Governing Auditing estétdh of
Financial Statements by Certified Public Accountants and auditing stamgsreislly accepted in the
Republic of China. Our responsibilities under those standards are further desctieduditors’
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements sectanrefport. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the Norm of Professional Ethics fée@eublic
Accountant of the Republic of China, and we have fulfilled our other ethical respoiesilit
accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we haee abgifficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, weostaignificance in our
audit of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended Dec&mB61.8. These matters
were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statamenthole, and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

The Key audit matters for the Group’s consolidated financial statemertkefgear ended December
31, 2018 are stated as follows:

Recognition of sales revenue

The Group’s main source of revenue comes from the sale of memory chips. Farteeded

December 31, 2018, the revenue recognized was NT$10,330,505 thousand, please refer to Notes 4, :
and 40 for information of accounting policy of revenue recognition. Due to the market rebound of
memory chips, the Group released certain sales orders by temporarisingréhe credit line. As



such, this gives the rise to the potential risk of overstating sales. We themfsigeced the validity
of occurrence of sales as a key audit matter for the year ended December 31, 2018.

We have assessed that the customers of the Group whose annual revenue geofeti2Gi8 have
changed significantly to be subject to the risk of validity of revenue reomgnTherefore, our audit
procedures performed with respect to these customers to confirm the validieofie recognition of
the Group include, but are not limited to, the following:

1. We understood and tested the effectiveness of the design and implementation ofritezriay i
controls over revenue recognition;

2. We sampled and inspected the validity of the background information of custorhéesdtha
significant changes in the annual sales revenue growth rate and understooshthebleaess of
such customers’ credit terms;

3. We performed on-site interviews by sampling and understood the business anocedsvance
of sales revenue.

4. We sampled and inspected whether an original purchase order existed foreeaod s&ds
approved appropriately.

5. We inspected product names and quantities on notifications of manufacturing, invoigesdsd
receipt and inspected the amounts to ensure they were consistent;

6. We inspected the reasonableness of collection of accounts receivable and tivbetbizction
amounts and counterparties were consistent with the revenue recognized.

Other Matter

We have also audited the parent company only financial statements of Sitronnolbgy Corp. as of
and for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017 on which we have issued an unmodified opinic

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the@solidated
Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the coeddindancial
statements in accordance with the Regulations Governing the Preparatioanuid Reports by
Securities Issuers, and International Financial Reporting Stand@Ris), International Accounting
Standards (IAS), IFRIC Interpretations (IFRIC), and SIC Interpogtsi(SIC) endorsed and issued
into effect by the Financial Supervisory Commission of the Republic of China anccfoirgernal
control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparatioolioflatetdinancial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether daadmfrerror.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is reptorsassessing the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicablersatated to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless managemeinteitteto liquidate
the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance, including the audit committee, are responsibledeeimvgthe
Group’s financial reporting process.



Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Finartial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurdymég avhether the consolidated financial statemasits
whole are free from material misstatement, whetluerto fraud or error, and to issue an auditorethat
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance istaléngl of assurance, but is not a guarantee thatdit
conducted in accordance with the auditing standgedsrally accepted in the Republic of China whillays
detect a material misstatement when it exists. tsfismients can arise from fraud or error and arsidered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, theguld reasonably be expected to influence theaom
decisions of users taken on the basis of theseotidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with the auditepdards generally accepted in the Republic ofaChve
exercise professional judgment and maintain prajaasskepticism throughout the audit. We also:

1. Identify and assess the risks of material misstant of the consolidated financial statementsthdr due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procesluesponsive to those risks, and obtain audieewdie
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide asés our opinion. The risk of not detecting a evél
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher thandiwe resulting from error, as fraud may involvéusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentati@nghe override of internal control.

2. Obtain an understanding of internal controlvefd to the audit in order to design audit proceduhat are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for thgp@ase of expressing an opinion on the effectiveinéshe
Group’s internal control.

3. Evaluate the appropriateness of accountingipsligsed and the reasonableness of accountingagssirand
related disclosures made by management.

4. Conclude on the appropriateness of managemese'sf the going concern basis of accounting aaskd
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a matenieértainty exists related to events or condititias may
cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability totoue as a going concern. If we conclude that eenz
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw atbenitn our auditors’ report to the related disclesun the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disates are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtaimeo the date of our auditors’ report. Howetetyre
events or conditions may cause the Group to ceasartinue as a going concern.

5. Evaluate the overall presentation, structurecamient of the consolidated financial statemdantdyuding
the disclosures, and whether the consolidated diahstatements represent the underlying transactaod
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

6. Obtain sufficient and appropriate audit evideregarding the financial information of entitieskarsiness
activities within the Group to express an opiniontiloe consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision, andqverance of the group audit. We remain solely resjie
for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governaegarding, among other matters, the planned scape an
timing of the audit and significant audit findingscluding any significant deficiencies in intermalntrol that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance avgtatement that we have complied with relevanctaith
requirements regarding independence, and to conuai@mvith them all relationships and other mattieas
may reasonably be thought to bear on our indep&edamd where applicable, related safeguards.



From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we detbosématters that
were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statefoetiie year ended
December 31, 2018 and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe tteysamaur auditors’
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or whérgnmeky rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our reuse biee
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the pebtic inte
benefits of such communication.

The engagement partners on the audit resulting in this independent auditors’ ee@drerag Chih Lin
and Yu Feng Huang.

Deloitte & Touche
Taipei, Taiwan
Republic of China

March 15, 2019

Notice to Readers

The accompanying consolidated financial statemargsntended only to present the consolidated fien
position, financial performance and cash flows ac@dance with accounting principles and practices
generally accepted in the Republic of China andthose of any other jurisdictions. The standardecpdures
and practices to audit such consolidated finanstatements are those generally applied in the Repab
China.

For the convenience of readers, the independentastreport and the accompanying consolidatedifioial
statements have been translated into English frarotiginal Chinese version prepared and used é th
Republic of China. If there is any conflict betwéles English version and the original Chinese \@rsir any
difference in the interpretation of the two versipthe Chinese-language independent auditors’ reqod
consolidated financial statements shall prevail.



SITRONIX TECHNOLOGY CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents (Notes 4, 6 and 35)

Financial assets at fair value through profit @sl¢Notes
4,7 and 35)

Financial assets at fair value through other cohrgmsive
income (Notes 4, 8 and 35)

Available-for-sale financial assets (Notes 4, 16 a5)

Financial assets at amortized cost (Notes 4, an8537)

Notes receivable and trade receivables, net (Nbté4 and
35)

Debt investments with no active market - currendt@d 4, 13
,35 and 37)

Notes receivable and trade receivable from relptaties
(Notes 4, 35 and 36)

Other receivables (Notes 14 and 35)

Inventories (Notes 4, 5 and 15)

Prepayments

Other current assets (Notes 20 and 35)

Total current assets

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Financial assets at fair value through profit @sle
non-current (Notes 4, 7 and 35)

Financial assets at fair value through other cohgmsive
income - non-current (Notes 4, 8 and 35)

Available-for-sale financial assets - non-currévivtes 4,
10 and 35)

Held-to-maturity financial assets - non-current {¢&¢4,11
and 35)

Financial assets at amortized cost - non-curreatg®4, 9
and 35)

Financial assets measured at cost - non-curreriegNp 12
and 35)

Property, plant and equipment (Notes 4 and 17)

Investment properties (Notes 4 and18)

Intangible assets (Notes 4 and 19)

Other non-current assets (Notes 20,33and 35)

Total non-current assets

TOTAL

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofdinsolidated financial statements.

2018 2017
Amount Amount % LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES
2,060,229 1,421,885 20 Short-term borrowings (Notes 4, 21 and 35)
Financial liabilities at fair value through priofir loss -
133,677 279,824 4 current (Notes 4, 7 and 35)
Notes payable and trade payables (Notes 22 and 35
216,918 - - Payables to related parties (Notes 35 and 36)
- 282,619 4 Other payables (Notes 23 and 35)
382,291 - - Accrued employees' compensation and remuneratidimextors
(Note 28)
1,359,075 1,009,582 14 Current tax liabilities (Notes 4 and 29)
Provisions - current (Notes 4 and 24)
- 183,502 3 Other current liabilities (Notes 23 and 35)
39 - - Total current liabilities
53,332 65,277 1
2,071,021 1,735,070 25 NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
126,479 74,361 1 Deferred tax liabilities (Notes 4 and 29)
12,538 5,845 Net defined benefit liabilities (Notes 4 and 25)
Guarantee deposits received (Notes 33 and 36)
6,415,599 5,057,965 72
Total non-current liabilities
Total liabilities
87,124 31,493 1
EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS OF THE
PARENT(Notes 4, 26,
633,921 - - 31 and 32)
Share capital
- 703,211 10 Ordinary shares
Capital surplus
- 30,499 - Retained earnings
Legal reserve
31,386 - - Special reserve
Unappropriated earnings
- 25,833 - Total retained earnings
810,304 782,145 11 Other equity
330,559 335,277 5 Exchange differences on translating the financial
47,875 55,789 1 statements of foreign operations
9,743 8,783 - Unrealized gain (loss) on financial assets atvalue
through other comprehensive income
1,950,912 1,973,030 28 Unrealized gain (loss) on available-for-sale ficiah
assets
Unearned compensation of employees
Total other equity
Equity attributable to shareholders of the parent
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Notes 16, 26 and 32)
Total equity
$ 8,366,511 $ 7,030,995 100 TOTAL

2018 2017
Amount % Amount %

476,168 6 20,220 -
1,262 - 480 -
1,560,675 19 1,141,166 16
- - 3,806 -
521,254 6 472,412 7
195,831 2 126,244 2
142,911 2 117,025 2
- - 5,089 -
42,750 - 17,495 -
2,940,851 35 1,903,937 27
610 - 576 -
51,318 1 57,555 1
168,060 2 70,683 1
219,988 3 128,814 2
3,160,839 38 2,032,751 29
1,202,226 14 1,205,176 17
761,304 9 785,875 11
875,493 11 788,177 12
26,644 - 8,728 -
2,124,198 25 1,969,197 28
3,026,335 36 2,766,102 40
(846) - (943) -
(251,101) 3 - -
- - (25,701) -
(25,652 - (50,850 1
(277,599 3 (77,493 (D
4,712,266 56 4,679,659 67
493,406 6 318,585 4
5,205,672 62 4,998,244 71
$ 8,366,511 0 $ 7,030,995 100



SITRONIX TECHNOLOGY CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Except Earning Per Share)

2018 2017
Amount % Amount %

NET REVENUE (Notes 4, 27 and 36) $ 10,330,505 100 $ 9,431,062 100

OPERATING COSTS (Notes 4, 15, 28 and 36) 7,460,479 72 6,916,729 73

GROSS PROFIT 2,870,026 28 2,514,333 27
OPERATING EXPENSES (Notes 4, 14, 28 and 36)

Selling and marketing expenses 173,113 2 151,888 2

General and administrative expenses 337,758 3 331,080 4

Research and development expenses 1,318,845 13 1,177,828 12

Gain on reversal of expected credit loss (2,204 - - -

Total operating expenses 1,827,512 18 1,660,796 18

INCOME FROM OPERATIONS 1,042,514 10 853,537 9

NON-OPERATING INCOME AND EXPENSES
(Notes 4, 28 and 36)

Other income 65,074 1 66,433 -
Other gains and losses 23,609 - 72,156 1
Finance costs (9,267 - (3,859 -
Total non-operating income and expenses 79,416 1 134,731 1
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX FROM
CONTINUING OPERATIONS 1,121,930 11 988,268 10
INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Notes 4 and 29) 108,110 1 97,034 1
NET INCOME FOR THE YEAR 1,013,820 10 891,234 9

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to
profit or loss:
Remeasurement of defined benefit plans(Notes 4
and 25) 4,599 - (746) -
Unrealized gain (loss) on investments in equity
instruments at fair value through other
comprehensive income (147,430) (2) - -
(Continued)



SITRONIX TECHNOLOGY CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Except Earnings Per Share)

2018 2017
Amount % Amount %
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to
profit or loss:
Exchange differences on translating foreign
operations $ (441) - $ (41) -
Unrealized loss on available-for-sale financial
assets - - (17,875) -
Unrealized gain (loss) on investments in debt
instruments at fair value through other
comprehensive income 218 - - -
Other comprehensive income (loss) for the
year, net of income tax (143,054 (2 (18,662 -
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR TH
YEAR $ 870,766 8 $ 872572 9
NET INCOME ATTRIBUTABLE TO:
Owners of the Company $ 840,363 8 $ 873,158 9
Non-controlling interests 173,457 2 18,076 -

$ 1,013,820 10 $ 891,234 9

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
ATTRIBUTABLE TO:
Owners of the Company $ 697,847 7 $ 854,496 9
Non-controlling interests 172,919 1 18,076 -

$ 870,766 8 $ 872572 9

EARNINGS PER SHARE (Note 30)

Basic $ 7.03 $ 7.32
Diluted $ 6.94 $ 7.22

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated finaneiaestts. (Concluded)



SITRONIX TECHNOLOGY CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Equity Attributable to Shareholders of the Parent

Other Equity (Notes 4, 26 and 31)

Unrealized Gain
(Loss) on Financial

Exchange Assets at Fair
Differences on Unrealized Gain Value Through Non-controlling
Share Capital (Note 26) Retained Earnings Translating (Loss) from Other Unearned Interests
Shares Capital Surplus Unappropriated Foreign Available-for-sale Comprehensive Compensation of (Notes 16, 26
(In Thousands) Amount (Notes 26 and 32) Legal Reserve Special reserve Earnings (Note 26) Operations Financial Assets Income Employees Total and 32) Total Equity
BALANCE AT JANUARY 1, 2017 120,638 $ 1,206,376 $ 811,101 $ 683,993 $ 21,364 $ 2,093,666 $ (902) $ (7,826) $ - $ (120,394) $ 4,687,378 $ 329,150 $ 5,016,528
Appropriation of 2016 earnings

Legal reserve - - - 104,184 - (104,184) - - - - - - -

Special reserve - - - - (12,636) 12,636 - - - - - - -

Cash dividends distributed by the Company - - - - - (723,826) - - - - (723,826) - (723,826)
Other changes in capital surplus

Changes in percentage of ownership interests in subisiliar - - (14,006) - - (181,507) - - - - (195,513) 195,513 -
Compensation costs of restricted shares for employees - - - - - - - - - 57,124 57,124 - 57,124
Retirement of restricted shares for employees (120) (1,200) (11,220) - - - - - - 12,420 - - -
Net income for the year ended December 31, 2017 - - - - - 873,158 - - - - 873,158 18,076 891,234
Other comprehensive loss for year ended December 31, 201, net

income tax - - - - - (746) (41) (17,879 - - (18,6629 - (18,662
Total comprehensive income for the year ended Decegihe2017 - - - - - 872,412 (412) (17,879 - - 854,496 18,076 872,572
Decrease in non- controlling interests - - - - - - - - - - - (174,547) (174,547)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests - - - - - - - - - - - (49,607 (49,607
BALANCE AT JANUARY 1, 2017 AS RESTATED 120,518 1,205,176 785,875 788,177 8,728 1,969,197 (943) (25,701) - (50,850) 4,679,659 318,585 4,998,244
EFFECT OF RETROSPECTIVE APPLICATION AND

RETROSPECTIVE RESTATEMENT - - - - - 81,235 - 25,701 (106,939 - - - -
BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31, 2017 120,518 1,205,176 785,875 788,177 8,728 2,050,432 (943) - (106,936) (50,850) 4,679,659 318,585 4,998,244
Appropriation of 2017 earnings

Legal reserve - - - 87,316 - (87,316) - - - - - - -

Special reserve. - - - - 17,916 (17,916) - - - - - - -

Cash dividends distributed by the Company - - - - - (662,847) - - - - (662,847) - (662,847)
Other changes in capital surplus

Changes in percentage of ownership interests in subisiliar - - 3,014 - - (70) - - - - 2,944 (2,944) -
Compensation cost of restricted shares for employees - - - - - - - - - (5,337) (5,337) - (5,337)
Restricting employee rights, new shares are not vested (295) (2,950) (27,585) - - - - - - 30,535 - - -
Disposal of equity instruments at fair value through otioenprehensive

income - - - - - (3,047) - - 3,047 - - - -
Net income for the year ended December 31, 2018 - - - - - 840,363 - - - - 840,363 173,457 1,013,820
Other comprehensive income (loss) for year ended Dece3ib@018,

net of income tax - - - - - 4,599 97 - (147,219 - (142,516 (538 (143,059
Total comprehensive income (loss) for the year endeémeer 31,

2018 - - - - - 844,962 97 - (147,212 - 697,847 172,919 870,766
Increase in non- controlling interests - - - - - - - - - - - 23,689 23,689
Cash dividends distributed by subsidiaries - - - - - - - - - - - (18,843 (18,843
BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31, 2018 120,223 $ 1,202,226 $ 761,304 $ 875,493 $ 26,644 $ 2,124,198 $ (846 $ - $ (251,10} $ (25,659 $ 4,712,266 $ 493,406 $ 5,205,672

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the cdasedi financial statements.




SITRONIX TECHNOLOGY CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

2018 2017
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Income before income tax $ 1,121,930 $ 988,268
Adjustments for:
Depreciation expense 194,278 167,878
Amortization expense 29,177 24,392
Gain on reversal of expected credit loss (2,204) -
Impairment loss reversed on trade receivables - (11,856)
Finance costs 9,267 3,858
Interest income (25,151) (40,250)
Dividend income (9,603) (10,337)
Net (gain) loss on fair value changes of finanagdets designated
as at fair value through profit or loss (15,700) 3,611
Compensation costs of share-based payments (5,206) 57,314
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment (292) (285)
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale financiadeis - (95,874)
Impairment loss on financial assets - 4,125
Write-downs of inventories 47,288 25,191
Unrealized net loss (gain) on foreign currency exde (14,763) 52,101
Changes in operating assets and liabilities
Financial assets held for trading - (36,556)
Notes receivable and trade receivables (365,564) (107,751)
Other receivables from related parties (39) -
Other receivables 16,801 7,731
Inventories (383,239) (140,412)
Prepayments (52,118) 7,244
Other current assets (6,693) (914)
Notes payable and trade payables 436,140 (188,747)
Payables to related parties (3,806) 3,725
Other payables 48,406 14,320
Other current liabilities 20,166 (11,343)
Net defined benefit liabilities (1,638) (1,442)
Accrued profit sharing bonus to employees' compemnsand
directors' remuneration 74,795 (26,373
Cash generated from operations 1,112,232 687,617
Dividends received 23,329 40,641
Interest paid (8,341) (3,859)
Income tax paid (85,225 (139,343
Net cash generated from operating activities 1,041,995 585,051
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of financial assets at fair value thgbwther
comprehensive income (209,566) -
Disposal of financial assets at fair value throotfter comprehensive
income 72,596

(Continued)



SITRONIX TECHNOLOGY CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

2018 2017
Purchase of financial assets measured at cost $ (627,441) $ -
Proceeds from the return of capital of financiaeds at amortized cost 428,652 -
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets aw&lue through profit
or loss (243,385) -
Disposal of financial assets at fair value thropgtfit or loss 501,322 -
Purchase of available-for-sale financial assets - (898,927)
Proceeds from sale of available-for-sale finanassets - 756,975
Proceeds from sale of debt investments with nvaetharket - 19,855
Proceeds from sale of held-to-maturity financialeds - 100,000
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment (217,892) (195,365)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and egaig 411 1,992
Increase in refundable deposits (446) (2,759)
Acquisitions of intangible assets (21,261) (35,408)
Increase in prepayments for equipment (514) -
Dividends received 9,603 10,337
Net cash used in investing activities (307,92} (243,300
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from short-term borrowings 3,149,754 230,060
Repayments of short-term borrowings (2,692,255) (229,430)
Proceeds from guarantee deposits received 97,377 3,126
Cash dividends distributed (662,847) (723,826)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests (18,843) (49,607)
Increase (decrease) in non-controlling interests 18,350 (203,663
Net cash used in financing activities (108,464 (973,340
EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES ON THE BALANCE OF
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS HELD IN FOREIGN
CURRENCIES 12,734 (51,509
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 638,344 (683,098)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE BEGINNING OF THE
YEAR 1,421,885 2,104,983
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE YEAR $ 2060,229 $ 1,421,885

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofdinsolidated financial statements.

(Concluded)



Attachment 5
Sitronix Technology Corp.

2018 Earnings Distribution Proposal
Unit: NT$ dollars

ltems Amount

Unappropriated retained earnings 1,201,118,344
Adjustment for Adopted TIFRS 81,234,713
Adjustment of Retained Earnings Through Investriadounted for (70,375
Using the Equity Method
Disposal of Retained Earnings by Fair value throoider (3,047,202
comprehensive income (i.e. FVTOCI)
Retained Earnings by Adjustment of Acturial assuomst 4,599,281
Adjusted Undistributed Earnings 1,283,834,761
Profit After-tax 840,363,15)

Loss: 10% Legal Reserve (84,036,316)

Loss: Special Reserve in accordance with law (225,303,269)
Distributable Earnings 1,814,858,333
Loss: Assigned Items

Shareholders’ Dividend (Cash Dividend NT$5 gears) (601,112,905)

Unappropriated Retained Earnings 1,213,745,428

Description:

(1) The number of registered number of ghigres of the company by the date of book closure
(April 28, 2019) is 120,222,581. If the companysre stock change in the future, and results
in the affection of outstanding shares, as wethasshift of preference rate of the shareholders
and, need to be corrected, it is proposed to itkigeshareholders to authorize the Board of

Directors comprehensively to handle.
(2)  According to the Finance and Taxatidatter of April 30, 1998, the Ministry of Finance,
N0.871941343, individual identification should lppted in the distribution of earnings. The

earnings distribution principle of the companyially distributed the earnings of 2018.



Sitronix Tec

Attac

hnology Corp.

hment 6

Comparison Table for the Articles of Incorporation Before and

After Revision

Article Before Revision Revised Version Descriptid
Aritcle 6-2 Added The counterparty in which shares were | Modified the
bought back by the company and stock | Company
bscriofi ‘ ) di Act: Article
subscription warrant was issued in 1671,
accordance with this Act; Employee Section 4:
gualification requirements which cover | Article
employees of parent company or 167'?’
Section 3;
subsidiaries who meet certain requiremenksrtide 267,
are entitled to a stock subscription warranSections 7
The Board of Directors has the authority[tg"d 11
resolve and determine the method of
distribution.
Article 9 There are two kinds of Shareholders'There are two kinds of Shareholders' E:/Iodified the
ompany
meeting: meeting: Act, Article
1. Regular meeting of shareholders] tb. Regular meeting of shareholders: to be170
be held once every year within six | held at leasbnce every year within six
montns after the end of each fiscal | montns after the end of each fiscal year
year 2. Special meeting of shareholders: to|be
2. Special meeting of shareholders;| tbeld when necessary in accordance with|the

be held when necessary in accordal

néaw

with the law




Article Before Revision Revised Version Descriptid
Article 13 The company appoints five to nine | The company appoints five to nine I'\:\\(l)vgiﬁed
directors for a three-year term who ardirectors for a three-year term who are also
also eligible for re-election. Among | eligible for re-election. Among these
these director seats, the number of | director seats, the number of independent
independent directors should not beg directors should not be less than three
less than two and not less than The election of company directors adopts
one-fifth of the number of director | the candidate nomination system.
seats Shareholders select directors from the ligt
The election of company directors | of candidates. The nomination method ig
adopts the candidate nomination applied according to one of the provisions
system. Shareholders select directgref Article 192 of the Company Act.
from the list of candidates. The The company must purchase liability
nomination method is applied insurance in accordance with the law
according to one of the provisions of during the course of its business operatipns
Article 192 of the Company Act. and term of office of directors.
The company must purchase liability
insurance in accordance with the lay
during the course of its business
operations and term of office of
directors.
Article 19-2 | Added The company may explicitly stipulate the chgdified
authorized distribution of dividends and | Company
bonuses in whole or in part, which may té;‘:g Article

paid in cash after a resolution is passed by a
rd

majority vote during a meeting of the bog

of directors attended by two-thirds of the

total number of directors. In addition, a

report of such distribution should be

submitted during the most recent

shareholders’ meeting.




Article

Before Revision

Revised Version

Descriptid

Article 19-3

Added

the company may, by means of a resolut

adopted by a majority of shareholders

present at the meeting (who represent

two-thirds or more of the total number of

Board members) and in accordance with

the Company Act, have its legal reserve

(i.e., only a portion of the legal reserve

exceeding 25% of the paid-in capital ma

be distributed) and capital reserve

distributed in whole or in part in the form

cash, and such distribution must be repo

during the most recent shareholders’

meeting.

Provided that there are no incurred lossed/odified

the

iaompany
Act, Article
241

ted

Article 21

The article was established on July|
1992.

First amended on October 1, 1992.

The second amendment was on Ma
29, 1994.

Skipped.
The twenty-fith amendment was q
June 22, 2016.

The twenty-sixth amendment was
June 22, 201

The twenty-seventh amendment w
on June 27, 2018.

T he article was established on July 7, 19
First amended on October 1, 1992.

The second amendment was on March
rctpo4.

Skipped.

The twenty-fifth amendment was on Ju
2, 2016.

The twenty-sixth amendment was on Jy
D22, 207.

The twenty-seventh amendment was
a3une 27, 2018.

The twenty-eighth amendment was on J
26, 2019.

92dded
amended

2@§\te .

ne
ne
on

une




Sitronix Technology Corp.

Attachment 7

Comparison Table for the Procedures for Acquisitionor Disposal of Assets

Before and After Revision

Before Revised

Revised Version

Description

Article 1 : Purpose and Source of Law
To protect the assets of the company af
implement information disclosure,
strengthen the management of the
company’s procedures for acquisition o
disposal of assets, establish the proced
in accordance with the provisions of
Article 36-10f the Securities and
Exchange Act and the relevant
correspondencef the securities
authorities. However, if other acts have
their provisions provide otherwise, the

Article 1 : Purpose and Source of Lg
To protect the assets of the company
and implement information disclosurg
strengthen the management of the
company'’s procedures for acquisitior
or disposal of assets, established the
procedures in accordance with the
provisions of Article 36-Df the
Securities and Exchange Act (herein
referred to “the act).The relevant
provisions of the Procedures for
Acquisitions or Disposal of Assets as

provisions shall be complied prior to the

set outby the competent authority of

precedures.

the securities.

Modified with the
Procedures for
Acquitisition or
Disposal of Assets,
article 1 and 2.

Article 2: Scope of Assets

1. Investments in stocks, bonds,
Corp.orate bonds, financial bonds
securities recognized by the fund,
depository receipts, call warrant,
beneficiary certificate and asset

backed securities, ete.

2. Real estate (including land, housir
and construction, investment real
estate, land accésand equipment.

3. Membership.

4. Intangible assets such as patent
rights, copyrights, trademark rights
and concessions.

5. Claims of financial institutions
(including receivables, discounting
of purchase of remittances and
loans, collection items).

. Financial Derivatives:

. Assets acquired or disposed of by
merging, splitting, acquiring or
obtaining shares in accordance wi
the law.

8. Other important assets.

~N o

Article 2: Scope of Assets

1. Investments in stocks, bonds,
Corp.orate bonds, financial
bonds, securities recognized by
the fund, depository receipts, cg
warrant, beneficiary certificate
and asset backed securities, et

2. Real estate (including land,
housing and construction,
investment real estate, and
access) and equipment.

3. Membership.

4. Intangible assets such as pater
rights, copyrights, trademark
rights and concessions.

5. Right-of-use assets thereof

6. Claims of financial institutions
(including receivables,
discounting of purchase of
remittances and loans, collectio
items).

7. Financial derivatives.

8. Assets acquired or disposed of
merging, splitting, acquiring or
obtaining shares in accordance
with the law.

9. Other important assets.

1. Modified with

the application
of the
International
Financial
Reporting
Standards
(IFRS) No. 16
“Lease”, the
addition of
paragraph 5 of
the right to use
assets norms,
and moved the
current section 2
of Land Access
to section 5.

2. Modified with

the Procedures
for Acquisition
or Disposal of
Assets, article 3.




Before Revised Revised Version Description
Article 3: Nominal Definition Article 3: Nominal Definition 1. Modified with
1. Financial Derivatives: It referrd to | 1. Financial Derivatives: Forward the

instruments that derive their value
from the performance of underlying
assetsinterest or currency exchang
rates, indexes or other. Such
instruments include swaps, options
futures contracts, leverage contract
forwards, and conpound contract of
various combinations thereof

Forwards referred herein exclude
insurance, performance, post-sale
service, long-term lease and
long-term sales/procurement
contracts
. Assets acquired or disposed throug
mergers, demergers, acquisitions, ¢
transfer of shares in accordance wif
law: Refers to assets acquired or
disposed through mergers,
demergers, or acquisitions conduct
under the Business Mergers and
Acquisitions Act, Financial Holding
Company Act, Financial Institution
Merger Act and other acts, or to
transfer of shares from another
company through issuance of new
shares of its own as the considerati
therefor (hereinafter "transfer of
shares™) under Article 156, paragra
8 of the Company Acts.

3~6 (skipped)

contracts, options contracts,
futures contracts, leverage
contracts, or swap contracts,
whose value is derived from a
specifiedinterest rate, financial
instrument pricecommodity

price, foreign exchange rate, inde
of prices or ratexredit rating or
credit index, or other variabler
hybrid contracts combining the
above contracts; or hybrid
contracts or structured products
containing embedded derivatives
The term "forward contracts" doe
not include insurance contracts,
performance contracts, after-sale
service contracts, long-term
leasing contracts, or long-term
purchase (sales) contracts.

D

[

or
p.

Assets acquired or disposed
through mergers, demergers,

acquisitions, or transfer of shares

in accordance with law: Refers tg
assets acquired or disposed
through mergers, demergers, or
acquisitions conducted under the
Business Mergers and
Acquisitions Act, Financial
Holding Company Act, Financial
Institution Merger Act and other
acts, or to transfer of shares from
another company through issuan
of new shares of its own as the
consideration therefor (hereinafte
"transfer of shares") under Article
156-3 of the Company Act.

3~6 (skipped)

7. Securities exchange: "Domestic
securities exchange" refers to the
Taiwan Stock Exchange
Corp.oration; "foreign securities
exchange" refers to any organize
securities exchange market that
regulated by the competent

X

S

D

N
ce

213,

application of
the
International
Financial
Reporting
Standards
(IFRS) No. 9
“Financial
Instruments”,
amended
section 1 and
texts.

. The

amendments
to the
Company
Acts issued
on August 1,
2007, have
been
implemented
on November
1, 2007, thus
amended
Article 156,
section 8 that
quoted in
paragraph 2 t(
Article 156-3.
To clearly
define the
domestic and
international
stock
exchanges
and securities
firms’
business
premises, and
facilitate the




Before Revised Revised Version Description
securities authorities of the company to
jurisdiction where it is located. follow.

. Over-the-counter venue ("OTC

venue", "OTC"): "Domestic OTC

venue" refers to a venue for OTG

trading provided by a securities
firm in accordance with the
Regulations Governing Securitie
Trading on the Taipei Exchange;
"foreign OTC venue" refers to a
venue at a financial institution tha
is requlated by the foreign
competent authority and that is
permitted to conduct securities
business.

U

At

4. Modified with

the
Procedures
for
Acquisition or
Disposal of
Assets, article
4.

Article 4: Exclusion of related persons
Professional appraisers and their officers
certified public accounts, attorneys, and
securities underwriters that provide publi
companies with appraisal reports, certifie
public accountant's opinions, attorney's
opinions, or underwriter's opinions shall 1
be the related counterparty of the

transaction.

Article 4: Exclusion of related persons
Professional appraisers and their
officers, certified public accounts,
attorneys, and securities underwriters
dthat provide public companies with
appraisal reports, certified public
ahccountant's opinions, attorney's
opinions, or underwriter's opinions shg
meet the following requirement:

1.

May not have previously received

2.

a final and unappeasable the
following requirement: sentence tq
imprisonment for 1 year or longer fo
a violation of the Act, the Company
Act, the Banking Act of The Republi
of China, the Insurance Act, the
Financial Holding Company Act, or
the Business Entity Accounting Act,
or for fraud, breach of trust,
embezzlement, forgery of documen
or occupational crime. However, thi
provision does not apply if 3 years
have already passed since complet
of service of the sentence, since
expiration of the period of a
suspended sentence, or since a pat
was received.

My not be related parties or de

3.

facto related parties to each other.
If the company is required to

obtain appraisal reports from two or
more professional appraisers, the
different professional appraisers or
appraisal officers may not be relateq
parties or de facto related parties to
each other.

When issuing an appraisal report or
opinion, the personnel referred to in

.

D

i}

the supplementar

s, fourth point

on issuance

dorprofessional

. Included the

. Giving explicit

matters that theg
professionals
shall notice,
which was the
Finance and
Taxation’s
letter of March
21, 2003, the
former
Ministry of
Finance,
Securities and
Future
Commission,
No0.092000115
1,

provisions the

concerned that
the public

company shall
consult the

valuer and its
appraisers,
accountants,
lawyers or
securities
underwriters,
etc., in the
criteria.

of the
responsibilities
of external

‘Q




Before Revised

Revised Version

Description

the preceding paragraph shall comg

with the following:
Prior to accepting a case, they
shall prudently assess their own
professional capabilities, practical
experience, and independence.
When examining a case, they shal
appropriately plan and execute
adequate working procedures, in
order to produce a conclusion and
use the conclusion as the basis for
issuing the report or opinion. The
related working procedures, data
collected, and conclusions shall be

1.

case working papers.

3. They shall undertake an item-by-ite
evaluation of the comprehensivenes
accuracy, and reasonableness of th
sources of data used, the paramete
and the information, as the basis for
issuance of the appraisal report or tl
opinion.

They shall issue a statement attesti

4.

to the professional competence and

independence of the personnel who

prepared the report or opinion, and

that they have evaluated and found

that the information used is

reasonable and accurate, and that t

have complied with applicable laws
and regulations.

fully and accurately specified in the

ly experts, and to
add the
evaluation of
reports or
submissions by

relevant experts

| verify and

declare matters.

3. Modified with
the Procedures
for Acquisition
or Disposal of
Assets, article
5.

1)

nw P n 3

ne

hey

Dy

Article 5: The Scope of Investment an
Maount

The company acquires real estate or
marketable securities that are not for

business use. The limits of the amoun

are respectively as follows:

1. The total amount of non-operating
real estate is limited to 50% of the
shareholders’ equity of the
company’s most recent financial
statements audited by the
accountants.

2. The total amount of investment
securities shall not exceed the
shareholders’ equity of the
company’s most recent financial

statements of the account audited &

dArticle 5: The Scope of Investment
and Maount

The company acquires real estate
its right-of-use assetbereof, or
tmarketable securities that are not f

business use. The limits of the

amount are respectively as follows]

1. The total amount of non-operatin
real estate and its right-of-use
assetghereof, is limited to 50% o
the shareholders’ equity of the
company’s most recent financial
statements audited by the
accountant.

2. The total amount of investment
securities shall not exceed the

y shareholders’ equity of the

Modified with the

application of the

joy

n .
International

Financial

|}

keporting
Standards (IFRS)
No. 16 “Lease”,
dded the

right-of-use assets|

g

a

f :
thereof regulation,
the right-of-use
assets thereof is
included in the
limit calculation of
the company’s

specificied process

D




Before Revised Revised Version Description
the accountant. company’s most recent financial | specification.
3. The limit for investing in individual statements of the account audited

securities shall not exceed 40% of the by the accountant.
shareholders’ equity of the 3. The limit amount for investing in
company’s most recent financial individual securities shall not
statements audited by the accountant. exceed 40% of the shareholders

equity of the company’s most

recent financial statements audited

by the accountant.

1. Modified with

Article 6: The Execution Unit,
Authorization Amount and Level
1~2 (skipped).

3. The acquisition or disposal of real
estate shall be submitted by the
management unit for the relevant
information. Where the paid-in
capital amount received at the end
the previous year that was more tha
20% shall need to petition the Boar
of Directors after the adoption.

. The acquisition or disposal of other
assets of the company (including
fixed assets, memberships and
intangible assets) shall be handled
accordance with the relevant

provisions of the company’s internal

control system and the means of
purchasing and approving all kinds
expenses.

5~6 (skipped).
With respect to a public company's
acquisition or disposal of assets tha
is subject to the approval of the boa
of directors under the company's
procedures or other laws or
regulations, if a director expresses
dissent and it is contained in the
minutes or a written statement, the
company shall submit the director's
dissenting opinion to the Audit
Committee.
Where the position of independent

Article 6: The Execution Unit,
Authorization Amount and Level
1~2 (skipped).

3. The acquisition or disposal of rea
estate and its right-of-use assets
thereof shall be submitted by the
management unit for the relevan

information. Where the paid-in
N capital amount received at the er
of the previous year that was mo
than 20% shall need to petition tk
Board of Directors after the
adoption.
. The acquisition or disposal of
n other assets of the company
(including fixed assets,
memberships and intangible ass
or its right-of-use assethereof)
shall be handled in accordance

with the relevant provisions of the

of

company’s internal control syster
and the means of purchasing anc
t approving all kinds of expenses.
ré~6 (skipped).
With respect to a public company
acquisition or disposal of assets
that is subject tohe approval of
the board of directors under the
company's procedures or other
laws or regulations, if a director
expresses dissent and it is
contained in the minutes or a
written statement, the company

=

[

nd
re
ne

D

. Modified with

ats or Disposal of

the application
of the
International
Financial
Reporting
Standards
(IFRS) No. 16
“Lease”, added
the right-of-use
assets thereof
regulation, the
right-of-use
assets thereof ig
included in the
limit calculation
of the
company’s
specificied
process
specification.

the Procedures
for Acquisition

Assets, article 8




Before Revised

Revised Version

Description

director has been created in
accordance with the provisions of tH

Act, when a transaction involving the

acquisition or disposal of assets is

submitted for discussion by the board

of directors pursuant to the precedir
paragraph, the board of directors sk
take into full consideration each
independent director's opinions. If g
independent director objects to or
expresses reservations about any
matter, it shall be recorded in the
minutes of the board of directors
meeting.

Where the Audit Committee has be
createdby the company, when the

material asset or derivatives
transaction are submitted for
discussion by the Board of Director
pursuant to the preceding paragrap
the Board of Directors shall take int
full consideration each independent
director's opinion. If an independent
director is objects to or expresses
reservations about any matter, it sh
be recorded in the minutes of the
board of directors meeting. Where ¢

shall submit the director's
dissenting opinion to the Audit
Committee.
In accordance with the provisions
of the Act, when a transaction
g involving the acquisition or
all disposal of assets is submitted fg
discussion by the Board of
n Directors pursuant to the
preceding paragraph, the Board
Directors shall take into full
consideration each independent
director's opinionsif an
independent director objects to o
expresses reservations about an
matter, it shall be recorded in the
minutes of the board of directors
meeting.
Any transaction involving major
assets or derivatives of the
company shall be approved by
more than half of all audit

e

(1%
>

to the board of directors for a
resolution, and shall be subject t(
mutatis mutandis application of
an  Article 30, paragraphs 4 and 5

all

audit committee has been establishied

in accordance with the provisions o
the Company Act, when the
procedures for the acquisition and
disposal of assets are adopted or
amended, they shall be approved b
more than half of all audit committe
members and submitted to the boar
of directors for a resolution. If
approval of more than half of all
audit committee members as requir,

in the preceding paragraph is not

obtained, the procedures may be

implemented if approved by more
than two-thirds of all directors, and

f

Y

=

=

committee members and submitted

O




Before Revised

Revised Version

Description

the resolution of the Audit

Committee shall be recorded in the

minutes of the Board of Directors
meeting.

Article 7: Evalution Procedures and
Price Determination Methods

1. (skipped).

2. Real estate dhe equipment

To acquire or dispose real estate,
reference shall be made to the pres
value of the announcement, the val
assessed, the actual transaction pri
of adjacent real estate, and the
resolution of the terms of the
transaction and the transaction pric
The acquisition or disposition of
equipment shall be made by way of
inquiry, price comparison, bargainin
or tender.

The company acquires or disposes
real property or equipment, in
addition to transactions with
government agencies, self-district
committee construction, Rental
District Committee construction, or
acquisition, disposal of equipment f
business use, those whose transac
amount reaches 20% of the paid-in
capital or NT$300 million

amount, shall obtain a valuation

report issued by a professional valuer of the paid-in capital or NT$300

before the fact occurs, and shall me
the following requirements:

(1) When the price, specific price or
special price shall be used as the

reference for the transaction price

for special reasons, the transactig
shall be first approved by
resolution of the Board of Trustee
Those who change the trading
conditions in the futurshall also
proceed with the procedure

e
ce

D

Dr
[

N (1) When the price, specific price
or special price shall be used as

Article 7: Evalution Procedures and
Price Determination Methods
1. (skipped).

right-of-use assethereof.
entTo acquire or dispose real estate
reference shall be made to the
present value of the
announcement, the value assess
the actual transaction price of
adjacent real estate, and the
resolution of the terms of the

transaction and the transaction
price. The acquisition or
disposition of equipment shall be|

of made by way of inquiry, price

comparison, bargaining or tender.

The company acquires or dispos

its right-of-use assetbereof, in
addition to transactions with
domesticgovernment agencies,
self-district committee
~construction, Rental District
I0ONCommittee construction, or

acquisition, disposal of equipment for Acquisition

or its right-of-use assetbereof
for business use, those whose
transaction amount reaches 20%

et million for the company’s paid-in
capital amount, shall obtain a
valuation report issued by a
professional valuer before the fa
occurs, and shall meet the
following requirements:

S.  the reference for the transactia

price for special reasons, the
transaction shall be first

2. Real estate, the equipment, or it$

€S company’s
of real property, the equipment, 0

ot

approved by resolution of the

1. Modified with
the application
of the
International
Financial

, Reporting

Standards

(IFRS) No. 16
ed;Lease”, added
the right-of-use
assets thereof
regulation, the
right-of-use
assets thereof is
included in the
limit calculation
of the

r specificied
process
specification.

2. Modified with

the Procedures
or Disposal of

Assets, article 9
and 11.

n
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accordingly.
(2)~(4) (skipped).
3. Membershipsr Intangible assets
To acquire or dispose of
memberships, the relevant price
information shall be collected in
advance to consider the benefits it
can generate, and consult the lates
transaction price then. The
acquisition or disposal of intangible
assets shall refer to international or

local usage, life time, and the impac¢

on company technology and busine
The revelant acts and contracts are|
carefully evaluated to determine the
transaction price.

Where the company acquires or
disposes of intangible assets or
right-of-use assets thereof or
membershipsind the transaction
amount reaches 20 percent or morg
paid-in capital or NT$300 million or
more, except in transactions with a
domestic government agency, the
company shall engage a certified
public accountant prior to the date ¢
occurrence of the event to render a
opinion on the reasonableness of th
transaction price; the CPA shall
comply with the provisions of
Statement of Auditing Standards N
20 published by the ARDF.

4~6 (skipped).

Where the company acquird or
disposd of assets through the court
auction procedure, it can replace th
valuation report or accountant’s
opinion with the certification
documents issued by the court.

Board of Trustees. Those who
change the trading conditions
the future shall also proceed

(2)~(4) (skipped).
3. Intangible assets or its right-of-u

assetghereof, or memberships.

[ To acquire or dispose of
memberships, the relevant price
information shall be collected in
advance to consider the benefits

—+

ss. transaction price then. The
acquisition or disposal of

intangible assets or its right-of-us

assetdghereof shall refer to
international or local usage, life
time, and the impact on company
technology and business. The
revelant acts and contracts are
» of carefully evaluated to determine
the transaction price.

When the company acquires or
disposes of intangible assets or
right-of-use assets thereof, or
membershipsnd the transaction
amount reaches 20 percent or

—

e more of paid-in capital or

NT$3,000,000,000 or more,

except in transactions with a

). domestic government agency, th
company shall engage a certified
public accountant prior to the dat
of occurrence of the event to
render an opinion on the
reasonableness of the transactio
price; the CPA shall comply with
the provisions of Statement of
Auditing Standards No. 20
published by the ARDF.

4~6 (skipped).
Where the company acquire or

[¢2)

with the procedure accordingly.

t

can generate, and consult the latest

e

D
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dispose of assets through the court

auction procedure, it can replace

the valuation report or

accountant’s opinion with the

certification documents issued by

the court.
Article 9: Announcement Procedure Article 9: Announcement Procedure | 1. Modified with
Where the company acquires or disposes Wfhere the company acquires or disposesthe application
assets, if any of the following of assets, if any of the following of the
circumstances occur, it shall, in accordanceircumstances occur, it shall, in International
with the prescribed format, announce and accordance with the prescribed format, Financial
declare the information to the designated| announce and declare the information|to Reporting
website of the securities authority under thihe designated website of the securitigs Standards
relevant regulations with two days from theauthority under the relevant regulations (IFRS) No. 16

date of occurrence.

1. When the company intends to acquire
dispose of real estate from or to a relat
party, or when it intends to acquire or
dispose of assets other than real prope
from or to a related party and the
transaction amount reaches 20 percen
more of paid-in capital, 10 percent or
more of the company's total assets, or
NT$300 million or more, except in
trading of government bonds or bonds
under repurchase and resale agreeme
or subscription or redemption of money
market funds issued by domestic
securities investment trust enterprise.

. Merger, demerger, acquisition, or shar
transfer.

3. Losses from derivatives trading reachit
the limits on aggregate losses or losse
on individual contracts set out in the
procedures adopted by the company.

4. Where equipment or the type of assets
for business use are acquired or dispos
of, and furthermore the transaction
counterparty is not a related party, and
the transaction amount meets any of th
following criteria:

with two days from the date of
ooccurrence.

ed. When the company intends to acqu
or dispose of real estate or its

rty right-of-use assethereof from or

to a related party, or when it intends|
[ orto acquire or dispose of assets othe
than real estate or its right-of-use
assetghereof from or to a related
party and the transaction amount
reaches 20 percent or more of paid-
nts,capital, 10 percent or more of the
company's total assets, or NT$300
million or more, except in trading of
domestic government bonds or bon

a)

under repurchase and resale
agreements, or subscription or
ng redemption of money market funds

N

5 issued by domestic securities
investment trust enterprise.

2. Merger, demerger, acquisition, or
share transfer.

563 Losses from derivatives trading

reaching the limits on aggregate

losses or losses on individual

contracts set out in the procedures

adopted by the company.

1

in

s

(1)For a public company whose paid-

M. Where equipment or its right-of-use

. Modified with

“Lease”, added
the right-of-use
assets thereof
regulation, the
right-of-use
assets thereof is
included in the
limit calculation
of the
company’s
specificied
process

specification.

the Procedures
for Acquisition
or Disposal of
Assets, article
31.
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capital is less than NT$10 billion, th
transaction amount reaches NT$50
million or more.

(2)For a public company whose paid-
capital is NT$10 billion or more, the|
transaction amount reaches NT$1
billion or more.

5. Acquisition or disposal by a public
company in the construction business
real property for construction use, and
furthermore the transaction counterpar
is not a related party, and the transacti
amount reaches NT$500 million.

. Where an asset transaction other than
of those referred to in the preceding fiv
subparagraphs, a disposal of receivabl
by a financial institution, or an
investment in the mainland China area
reaches 20 percent or more of paid-in
capital or NT$300 million; provided, thi
shall not apply to the following
circumstances:

(1). Trading of government bonds.

(2). Trading of bonds under repurcha

and resale agreements, or
subscription or redemption of
money market funds issued by
domestic securities investment
trust enterprises.
The amount of transactions above sha
be calculated as follows:
1. The amount of any individual
transaction.
2. The cumulative transaction amount
acquisitions and disposals of the san

type of underlying asset with the same

transaction counterparty within the
preceding year.

3. The cumulative transaction amount
acquisitions and disposals (cumulati
acquisitions and disposals,

[N

for business use are acquired or
disposed of, and furthermore the
transaction counterparty is not a
related party, and the transaction
amount meets any of the following
criteria:

(1)For a public company whose
Df paid-in capital is less than NT$1
billion, the transaction amount
y

bn  (2)For a public company whose
paid-in capital is NT$10 billion
any  or more, the transaction amoun
e reaches NT$1 billion or more.
eS. Where land is acquired under an
arrangement on engaging others to
build on the company's own land,

engaging others to build on rented

U7

land, joint construction and allocatio
of housing units, joint construction
and allocation of ownership
percentages, or joint construction ar
1Sse separate sale, and furthermore the

transaction counterparty is not a

related partyand the amount the
company expects to invest in the
transaction reaches NT$500 million
. Where an asset transaction other th

any of those referred to in the

preceding five subparagraphs, a
disposal of receivables by a financia
institution, or an investment in the
Df
ne

mainland China area reaches 20
percent or more of paid-in capital or
NT$300 million; provided, this shall
not apply to the following
circumstances:

Df
e

(1).Trading of domestic
government bonds.
(2).Trading of bonds under

assetghereof, or the type of asset$

D

reaches NT$500 million or more.

0

nd

an

respectively) of real estate within the

repurchase and resale
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same development project within the
preceding year.

4. The cumulative transaction amount
acquisitions and disposals (cumulati
acquisitions and disposals,
respectively) of the same security
within the preceding year.

"Within the preceding year" as used in

the preceding paragraph refers to the

year preceding the date of occurrence
the current transaction. Iltems duly
announced in accordance with these

Regulations need not be counted toward

the transaction amount.

The company shall, on a monthly basig
import the information declaration
websites designated by the securities
authority before 10 of each month in
accordance with the prescribed format
the company, and the subsidiaries of tf
company that are not part of the
domestic public company to engage in
derivative commodity transactions unti
the end of the previous month.

e

of

of
ne

agreements, or subscription of
redemption of money market
funds issued by domestic
securities investment trust
enterprises.

The amount of transactions above

shall be calculated as follows:

1. The amount of any individual
transaction.

2. The cumulative transaction amou
of acquisitions and disposals of th
same type of underlying asset wit
the same transaction counterparty
within the preceding year.

3. The cumulative transaction amou
of acquisitions and disposals
(cumulative acquisitions and
disposals, respectively) of real
estate or its right-of-use assets

thereof within the same
development project within the
preceding year.

4. The cumulative transaction amou
of acquisitions and disposals
(cumulative acquisitions and
disposals, respectively) of the sar

security within the preceding year.

"Within the preceding year" as used
in the preceding paragraph refers tg
the year preceding the date of
occurrence of the current transactio
Items duly announced in accordanc
with these Regulations need not be
counted toward the transaction
amount.

The company shall, on a monthly
basis, import the information
declaration websites designated by
the securities authority before™ 6f
each month in accordance with the
prescribed format of the company,

nt

=}

and the subsidiaries of the company
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Description

that are not part of the domestic
public company to engage in
derivative commodity transactions
until the end of the previous month.

Article 12: The Scope and Amount of

1. The total amount of real estate, which

2. The total amount of the investment

3. The limit for investing in individual

Investment in Subsidiaries
The limits of the amount of real estate

marketable securities purchased by the

company'’s subsidiaries for business us
are as follows:

is not for business use, is limited to
the shareholder’s equity in the
financial statements of the
subsidiary’s most recent certified visa
to the accountant.

securities shall not exceed the
shareholders’ equity of the
subsidiary’s most recent financial
statements of account audited by the
accountant.

securities shall not exceed the
shareholders’ equity of the financial
statements of the most recent period in
which an accountant audits the
subsidiary.

Article 12: The Scope and Amount of
Investment in Subsidiaries

or The limits of the amount of real

> estate, its right-of-use assétereof,

ses or marketable securities purchased
the company’s subsidiaries for
business uses are as follows:

1. The total amount of real estate and
its right-of-use assethereof,

which is not for business use, is
limited to the shareholder’s equity
in the financial statements of the
subsidiary’s most recent certified
visa to the accountant.

2. The total amount of the investment
securities shall not exceed the
shareholders’ equity of the
financial statements of the
subsidiary’s most recent account
audited by the accountant.

3. The limit for investing in
individual securities shall not
exceed the shareholders’ equity of
the financial statements of the most
recent period in which an
accountant audits the subsidiary.

1. Modified with
the application of
the International
Financial
Reporting
Standards (IFRS
No. 16 “Lease”,
added the
right-of-use
assets thereof
regulation, the
right-of-use
assets thereof is
included in the
limit calculation
of the company’s
specificied
process
specification.

. Modified with
the Procedures
for Acquisition
or Disposal of
Assets, article 7.

Article 14: The Scope of Application

When a public company engages in any
acquisition or disposal of assets from or
a related party, in addition to ensuring th
the necessary resolutions are adopted a
the reasonableness of the transaction te
is appraised, if the transaction amount
reaches 10 percent or more of the
company's total assets, the company sh

also obtain an appraisal report from a

Article 14: The Scope of Application
When a public company engages in g
o acquisition or disposal of assets from
at to a related party, in addition to
nd ensuring that the necessary resolutiol
rms are adopted and the reasonableness
the transaction terms is appraised, if {
transaction amount reaches 10 perce
or more of the company's total assets

the company shall also obtain an

professional appraiser or a CPA's opinio

=]

appraisal report from a professional

Modified with the
Procedures for

MNXcquisition or
OlPisposaI of Assets,

article 14.
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in compliance with the provisions of the
preceding Section and this Section.

The calculation of the transaction
amount referred to in the preceding
paragraph shall be made.

When judging whether a trading
counterparty is a related party, in additio
to legal formalities, the substance of the

relationship shall also be considered.

appraiser or a CPA's opinion in
compliance with the provisions of the
preceding Section and this Section.

The calculation of the transaction
amount referred to in the preceding
paragraph shall be made in accordan
with Article 7-1 herein.

=]

When judging whether a trading
counterparty is a related party, in
addition to legal formalities, the
substance of the relationship shall alg

be considered.

ce

o

Article 15: The Resolution Procedure
When a public company intends to acquire
dispose of real estate from or to a related
party, or when it intends to acquire or dispg
of assets other than real estate from or to &

related party and the transaction amount

reaches 20 percent or more of paid-in capitabr its right-of-use assetsereof, from or

10 percent or more of the company's total
assets, or NT$300 million or more, except i
trading of government bonds or bonds und
repurchase and resale agreements, or
subscription or redemption of money marke
funds issued by domestic securities
investment trust enterprises, the company
may not proceed to enter into a transaction

contract or make a payment until the

following matters have been approved by thenvestment trust enterprises, the compa

Board of Directors and recognized by the
supervisors:

(1)The purpose, necessity andanticipate
benefit of the acquisition or disposal
assets.

(2). The reason for choosing the related
party as a trading counterparty.

(3). With respect to the acquisition of rea
estate from a related party, informati
regarding appraisal of the
reasonableness of the preliminary

transaction terms.

Article 15: The Resolution Procedure
ovWhen a public company intends to acqu
or dispose of real property or its

seght-of-use assetkereof, from or to a

related party, or when it intends to acqu

or dispose of assets other than real estg

to a related party and the transaction
namount reaches 20 percent or more of
2ipaid-in capital, 10 percent or more of the
company's total assets, or NT$300 millig
tor more, except in trading of domestic
government bonds or bonds under
repurchase and resale agreements, or
subscription or redemption of money

market funds issued by domestic securi

may not proceed to enter into a transact
contract or make a payment until the
dfollowing matters have been approved b
othe board of directors and recognized by
the supervisors:
(1). The purpose, necessity and
anticipated benefit of the
I

bn (2). The reason for choosing the relat

acquisition or disposal of assets.

party as a trading counterparty.
(3). With respect to the acquisition of

real estate or its right-of-use asset

(4). The date and price at which the

1. Modified with
irde application of
the International
Financial
ré&keporting
t&tandards (IFRS)
No. 16 “Lease”,
added the
right-of-use assets|
> thereof regulation,
rthe right-of-use
assets thereof is
included in the
limit calculation of
the company’s
iespecificied process
nypecification.
ich Modified with
the Procedures for|
yAcquisition or
Disposal of Assets

article 15.

1%

thereof, from a related party,

]
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related party originally acquired th
real property, the original trading
counterparty, and that trading
counterparty's relationship to the
company and the related party.

(5). Monthly cash flow forecasts for the
year commencing from the
anticipated month of signing of th¢
contract, and evaluation of the
necessity of the transaction, and
reasonableness of the funds
utilization.

(6). An appraisal report from a
professional appraiser or a CPA's
opinion obtained in compliance
with the preceding article.

(7). Restrictive covenants and other
important stipulations associated
with the transaction.

The calculation of the transaction

amounts referred to in the preceding

paragraph shall be made, and "within
preceding year" as used herein refers
the year preceding the date of

occurrence of the current transaction.

Items that have been approved by the

board of directors and recognized by t

supervisors need not be counted towa

the transaction amount.

With respect to the acquisition or

disposal of business-use equipment

between the company and its parent @
subsidiaries, the company's Board of

Directors may pursuant to delegate thg

board chairman to decide such matter

when the transaction is within a

NT$300,000,000 and have the decisio

subsequently submitted to and ratified

by the next Board of Directors meeting.

Where the position of independent

director has been created in accordan

e

he

to

rd

=

with the provisions of the Act, when a

information regarding appraisal of
the reasonableness of the
preliminary transaction terms.

(4). The date and price at which thg
related party originally acquire
the real property, the original
trading counterparty, and that
trading counterparty's
relationship to the company arf
the related party.

(5). Monthly cash flow forecasts for
the year commencing from the
anticipated month of signing of
the contract, and evaluation of
the necessity of the transactiorn
and reasonableness of the fun
utilization.

(6). An appraisal report from a
professional appraiser or a
CPA's opinion obtained in
compliance with the preceding
article.

(7). Restrictive covenants and othe

important stipulations

associated with the transaction.

The calculation of the transaction
amounts referred to in the preceding
paragraph shall be made, and "within
the preceding year" as used herein
refers to the year preceding the date
occurrence of the current transaction.
Items that have been approved by the
board of directors and recognized by
the supervisors need not be counted
toward the transaction amount.

With respect to the acquisition or

disposal of business-use equipment

between a the and its parent or

subsidiaries, or the subsidiaries that
directly or indirectly hold 100% of the

issued shares or total capital of the

ds

r

Y

company engages in the following




The company that acquires real estate fi
a related party shall evaluate the
reasonableness of the transaction cos
by the following means:

1. Based upon the related party's

om The company that acquires real estat

or its right-of-use assetbereof from

[s a related party shall evaluate the
reasonableness of the transaction

costs by the following means:

transaction price plus necessary

1]

1. Based upon the related party's

Before Revised Revised Version Description

matter is submitted for discussion by the transactions with each othehe
board of directors pursuant to paragraph company's Board of Directors may
1, the Board of Directors shall take intp  pursuant to delegate the board chairman
full consideration each independent to decide such matters when the
director's opinions. If an independent transaction is within a NT$300,000,000
director objects to or expresses and have the decisions subsequently
reservations about any matter, it shall be submitted to and ratified by the next
recorded in the minutes of the Board af Board of Directors meeting.
Directors meeting. (1). To acquire or dispose of the
Where an audit committee has been equipment or its right-of-use
established in accordance with the assetghereof for business use.
provisions of the Act, the matters for (2). To acquire or dispose of real
which paragraph 1 requires recognition estate or its right-of-use assets
by the supervisors shall first be thereof for business use.
approved by more than half of all audi When a matter is submitted for
committee members and then submitted discussion by the board of directors
to the board of directors for a resolution, pursuant to paragraph 1, the Board o
and shall be subject to mutatis mutandis Directors shall take into full
application. consideration each independent

Where an Audit Committee has been director's opinionsif an independent

established in accordance with the director objects to or expresses

praragraph 1 of the Company Act, when reservations about any matter, it shal

the procedures for the acquisition and be recorded in the minutes of the Board

disposal of assets are adopted or amended of Directors meeting under Article 30,

they shall be approved by more than half  paragraph 4 and 5.

of all audit committee members and

submitted to the board of directors for a

resolution. If approval of more than half of

all audit committee members as required in

the preceding paragraph is not obtained

the procedures may be implemented if

approved by more than two-thirds of all

directors, and the resolution of the audit

committee shall be recorded in the minutes

of the Board of Directors meeting.

Article 16: Evaluation Procedure Article 16: Evaluation Procedure 1. Modified with

the application
of the
International
Financial
Reporting
Standards
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interest on funding and the costs to pe  transaction price plus necessary (IFRS) No. 16
duly borne by the buyer. "Necessary interest on funding and the coststo  “Lease”, added
interest on funding" is imputed as the be duly borne by the buyer. the right-of-use
weighted average interest rate on "Necessary interest on funding” is assets thereof
borrowing in the year the company imputed as the weighted average regulation, the
purchases the property; provided, it interest rate on borrowing in the year right-of-use
may not be higher than the maximum the company purchases the property; assets thereof ig

non-financial industry lending rate
announced by the Ministry of
Finance.

2. Total loan value appraisal from a
financial institution where the related
party has previously created a mortga
on the property as security for a loan;
provided, the actual cumulative amour
loaned by the financial institution shall
have been 70 percent or more of the
financial institution's appraised loan
value of the property and the period of
the loan shall have been 1 year or mo
However, this shall not apply where th
financial institution is a related party of
one of the trading counterparties.
Where land and structures thereupon
combined as a single property purcha
in one transaction, the transaction cos
for the land and the structures may be
separately appraised in accordance w
either of the means listed in the
preceding paragraph.

The company that acquires real estate
from a related party and appraises the
cost of the real estate in accordance w

paragraph 1 and paragraph 2 shib

engage a CPA to check the appraisal
render a specific opinion.

Where the company acquires real esta
from a related party and one of the
following circumstances exists, the
acquisition shall be conducted in

accordance with Article 18nd the

je

—

(£

are
sed

[s

th

ith

and

ite

preceding three paragraphs do not ap

S

y:

. Total loan value appraisal from a

provided, it may not be higher than
the maximum non-financial industry
lending rate announced by the

Ministry of Finance.

financial institution where the relate
party has previously created a
mortgage on the property as securi
for a loan; provided, the actual
cumulative amount loaned by the
financial institution shall have been
70 percent or more of the financial
institution's appraised loan value of
the property and the period of the
loan shall have been 1 year or mor
However, this shall not apply where
the financial institution is a related
party of one of the trading
counterparties.

Where land and structures thereup
are combined as a single property
purchased or leasédl one
transaction, the transaction costs fqg

the land and the structures may be

separately appraised in accordance

with either of the means listed in th

preceding paragraph.

The company that acquires real

estate or its right-of-use assets

thereof from a related party and
appraises the cost of the real estatg
accordance with the previous two
paragraphs shall also engage a CH

to check the appraisal and render g

o

=

A

117

A

specific opinion.

he.

2 in

included in the
limit calculation
of the
company’s
specificied
process
specification.
Modified with
the Procedures
for Acquisition
or Disposal of
Assets, article
16.
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1. The related party acquired the real

estate through inheritance oras a g

2. More than 5 years will have elapsed

from the time the related party signe
the contract to obtain the real estate
the signing date for the current
transaction.

3. The real estate is acquired through
signing of a joint development
contract with the related party, or
through engaging a related party to
build real estate, either on the
company's own land or on rented
land.

ft.

2d

to

Where the company acquires real

estate or its right-of-use assets

thereof from a related party and on
of the following circumstances
exists, the acquisition shall be
conducted in accordance with the
previous paragraph p and the
preceding three paragraphs do not
apply:

1. The related party acquired the re

estate or its right-of-use assets

thereof through inheritance or ag
gift.

2. More than 5 years will have
elapsed from the time the relateqg
party signed the contract to obta
the real estate or its right-of-use
assetghereof to the signing date
for the current transaction.

3. The real estate is acquired throu
signing of a joint development
contract with the related party, o
through engaging a related party|
to build real estate, either on the
company's own land or on rente(
land.

. To acquire or dispose of real

estate and its right-of-use assets

thereof for business use betweer

the and its parent or subsidiaries

or the subsidiaries that directly o
indirectly hold 100% of the issue

shares or total capital of the

company engages in the

transactions with each other.

al

a

]

na

I

Article 17: The company that acquires real

property, when the results of the company's
appraisal conducted in accordance with the
preceding paragraph, section 1 and section
are uniformly lower than the transaction pric

the matter shall be handled in compliance

Article 17:The company that acquires re
property, when the results of the
company's appraisal conducted in
2accordance with the preceding paragrap
tesection 1 and section 2 are uniformly

lower than the transaction price, the mat

with Article 18. However, where the

shall be handled in compliance with

all. Modified with the
application of the
International

h, Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS)

ter No. 16 “Lease”,

added the
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following circumstances exist, objective
evidence has been submitted and specific
opinions on reasonableness have been

obtained from a professional real property

appraiser and a CPA have been obtained, thiom a professional real property appraig

restriction shall not apply:
1. Where the related party acquired

undeveloped land or leased land for

development, it may submit proof of

compliance with one of the following
conditions:

(1) Where undeveloped land is appraise
and structures according to the relate
party's construction cost plus
reasonable construction profit are
valued in excess of the actual
transaction price. The "Reasonable
construction profit" shall be deemed
the average gross operating profit
margin of the related party's
construction division over the most
recent 3 years or the gross profit
margin for the construction industry f
the most recent period as announced
the Ministry of Finance, whichever is
lower.

(2) Completed transactions by unrelated
parties within the preceding year
involving other floors of the same
property or neighboring or closely
valued parcels of land, where the lan
area and transaction terms are simila
after calculation of reasonable price
discrepancies in the floor or area lang
prices in accordance with standard
property market sale.

(3) Leasing transactions with unrelated

parties within the preceding year

involving other floors, where the land

area and trading transaction terms ar

similar after calculation of reasonablée

|

Article 18. However, where the following
circumstances exist, objective evidence
has been submitted and specific opinion

on reasonableness have been obtained

and a CPA have been obtained, this

restriction shall not apply:

1. Where the related party acquired
undeveloped land or leased land for
development, it may submit proof of
compliance with one of the following
conditions:

(1) Where undeveloped land is

to the related party's construction
cost plus reasonable construction
profit are valued in excess of the
actual transaction price. The
"Reasonable construction profit"
shall be deemed the average gros
operating profit margin of the
related party's construction divisio
over the most recent 3 years or th
by  gross profit margin for the
construction industry for the most

Ministry of Finance, whichever is
lower.
(2) Completed transactiofry unrelated
parties within the preceding year
d

r

involving other floors of the same
property or neighboring or closely
valued parcels of land, where the
) land area and transaction terms a
similar after calculation of
reasonable price discrepancies in
the floor or area land prices in
accordance with standard property
market sale or lease.

e2. Where the company acquiring real

estate or obtaining a real estate

]

1)

recent period as announced by the

right-of-use assets

thereof regulation,

the right-of-use

assets thereof is

er included in the
limit calculation of
the company’s
specificied process
specification.

2. Modified with the

Procedures for
Acquisition or

Disposal of Assets,

appraised, and structures according article 17.

price discrepancies or spread

right-of-use assets thereof through




Before Revised

Revised Version

Description

estimation on floor in accordance with

leasing from a related party provides

standard property market sale or

leasing practices.

2. Where the company acquiring real
property, from a related party provides
evidence that the terms of the completed
transaction are similar to the terms of
completed transactionsvolving
neighboring or closely valued parcels of
land of a similar size by unrelated parties
within the preceding year.

Completed transactions involving
neighboring or closely valued parcels of
land in the preceding paragraph in
principle refers to parcels on the same of
an adjacent block and within a distance
no more than 500 meters or parcels clos|
in publicly announced current value;
transactions involving similarly sized

parcels in principle refers to transactions

completed by unrelated parties for parcels

with a land area of no less than 50 perce
of the property in the planned transaction;
within the preceding year refers to the ye
preceding the date of occurrence of the

acquisition of the real estate.

Df

D

nt

ar

evidence that the terms of the
transaction are similar to the terms of
transactions involving neighboring or
closely valued parcels of land of a
similar size by unrelated parties within
the preceding year.
Transactionsnvolving neighboring or
closely valued parcels of land in the

preceding paragraph in principle refer

2]

to parcels on the same or an adjacent

block and within a distance of no mor

1]

than 500 meters or parcels close in
publicly announced current value;
transactions involving similarly sized
parcels in principle refers to
transactiongompleted by unrelated
parties for parcels with a land area of

no less than 50 percent of the propert

<

in the planned transaction; within the
preceding year refers to the year
preceding the date of occurrence of the
acquisition of the real property or
obtainment of the right-of-use assets

thereof.

Article 18:Where the company acquires real
estate from a related party and the results

appraisals conducted in accordance with

be taken:

Article 16, and 17are uniformly lower than

the transaction price, the following steps sh

1. A special reserve shall be set aside in
accordance with Article 41, paragraph 1

the Company Actgainst the difference

between the real estate transaction price
and the appraised cost, and may not be
distributed or used for capital increase or
issuance of bonus shares. Where thec
company uses the equity method to accg

for its investment in another company, th

vfreal estate or tis right-of-use assbesreof

alhe preceding two paragraplise

DfL. A special reserve shall be set aside in

Article 18:Where the company acquires

from a related party and the results of

appraisals conducted in accordance with

uniformly lower than the transaction pric

o

the following steps shall be taken:

accordance with Article 41, paragraph
of the Company Act against the
difference between the real estate and

its right-of-use assethereof

1. Modified with

the application
of the
International
Financial
Reporting
Standards
(IFRS) No. 16
“Lease”, added
the right-of-use
assets thereof

regulation, the

transaction price and the appraised cost, right-of-use

untand may not be distributed or used fo

en capital increase or issuance of bonus

the special reserve called for under Articl

e shares. Where the company uses the

assets thereof ig

included in the

limit calculation




Before Revised Revised Version Description
41, paragraph of the Company Asttall be equity method to account for its of the
set aside pro rata in a proportion consisteént investment in another company, then company’'s
with the share of the company's equity the special reserve called for under specificied
stake in the other company. Article 41, paragraph of the Company| process
2. An independent director shall comply with  Act shall be set aside pro rata in a specification.

Article 218 of the Company Act.
. Shall report to the shareholders’ meeting
the processing subsequences of the dinst
second of the secticand the details of the
transaction will be disclosed in the annug

report as well as annual handbook.

Where the company or the company uses the

equity method to account for its investment
the company, then the special reserve calle
for under the Act shall be set aside pro rata
a proportion consistent with the share of
public company's equity stake in the other
company.

When the company obtains real estate fron
related party, it shall also comply with the
preceding two paragraphs if there is other
evidence indicating that the acquisition was

not an arms length transaction.

in
d

in

na

2.

3.

proportion consistent with the share of 2.Modified with

the company's equity stake in the other
company.

An independent director shall comply
with Article 218 of the Company Act.

Shall report to the shareholders’

meeting the processing subsequences of

the first and second of the section and
the details of the transaction will be
disclosed in the annual report as well
annual handbook.

Where the company or the company
uses the equity method to account fo
its investment in a public company,
then the special reserve called for un
the Act shall be set aside pro rata in a
proportion consistent with the share gf
public company's equity stake in the
other company.

The company that has set aside a
special reserve under the preceding
paragraph may not utilize the special
reserve until it has recognized a loss
decline in market value of the assets |t
purchased or leased a premium, or
they have been disposed of, or the

leasing contract has been terminated

adequate compensation has been made,

ler

the Procedures
for Acquisition
or Disposal of
Assets, article
18.

or the status quo ante has been restored,

or there is other evidence confirming
that there was nothing unreasonable
about the transaction, and the FSC h
given its consent.

When a public company obtains real

estate of its right-of-use assétgreof

from a related party, it shall also

comply with the preceding two

S




Before Revised Revised Version Description
paragraphs if there is other evidence
indicating that the acquisition was not
an arms length transaction.
Article 22:Except as otherwise provided by| Article 22:Except as otherwise provided| 1. Modified with

other acts or with special factors, to repo
in advance to the consent of the competg
securities authority. A company
participating in a merger, demerger, or
acquisition shall convene a board of
directors meeting and shareholders mee

on the day of the transaction to resolve

matters relevant to the merger, demerger

or acquisition, unless another act provide
otherwise or the FSC is notified in advan
of extraordinary circumstances and grant
consent.

A company participating in a transfer of
shares shall call a board of directors
meeting on the day of the transaction,

unless another act provides otherwise or

FSC is notified in advance of extraordinary unless another act provides otherwise

circumstances and grants consent.
When participating in a merger, demerge
acquisition, or transfer of another
company's shares, a company that is list
on an exchange or has its shares traded
an OTC market shall prepare a full writte
record of the following information and
retain it for 5 years for reference:

When participating in a merger, demerge
acquisition, or transfer of another
company's shares, a company that is list
on an exchange or has its shares traded
an OTC market shall, within 2 days

counting inclusively from the date of

passage of a resolution by the board of

directors, report (in the prescribed forma

and via the Internet-based information

system)
. Basic identification data for personnel:

Including the occupational titles, names,

[

rt by other acts or with special factors, to

v

2Nt report in advance to the consent of the
competent securities authority. A
company participating in a merger,
demerger, or acquisition shall conven

ingboard of directors meeting and
shareholders meeting on the day of th

transaction to resolve matters relevan

to the merger, demerger, or acquisitio|
unless another act provides otherwiseg

the FSC is notified in advance of

7]

extraordinary circumstances and gran
consent.

A company participating in a transfer
shares shall call a board of directors

themeeting on the day of the transaction,

the FSC is notified in advance of
2r, extraordinary circumstances and gran
consent.

ed When participating in a merger,

on demerger, acquisition, or transfer of

n another company's shares, a compan

[

that is listed on an exchange or has it

shares traded on an OTC market shall

2r, prepare a full written record of the

following information and retain it for 5

ed years for reference:

on When participating in a merger,
demerger, acquisition, or transfer of
another company's shares, a compan

that is listed on an exchange or has it

[

shares traded on an OTC market shall

within 2 days counting inclusively fron

-

the date of passage of a resolution by
the board of directors, report (in the

prescribed format and via the

and national ID numbers (or passport

Internet-based information system)

e
t 1.Amended the

n, Procedures for

or

f

or

ts

the Procedures
for Acquisition
or Disposal of

Assets, article

e a 25, added

related contents

Acquisition or

Disposal of

ts Assets, article

25, added

related contents




Before Revised

Revised Version

Description

numbers in the case of foreign nationals
all persons involved in the planning or
implementation of any merger, demerger
acquisition, or transfer of another
company's shares prior to disclosure of t
information.

. Dates of material events: Including the
signing of any letter of intent or
memorandum of understanding, the hirin
of a financial or legal advisor, the
execution of a contract, and the convenir
of a board of directors meeting.

. Important documents and minutes:
Including merger, demerger, acquisition,
and share transfer plans, any letter of int
or memorandum of understanding, mate
contracts, and minutes of Board of
Directors’ meetings.

Where any of the companies participatin
in a merger, demerger, acquisition, or

transfer of another company's shares is
neither listed on an exchange nor has ity
shares traded on an OTC market, the

company(s) so listed or traded shall sign
agreement with such company whereby
latter is required to abide by the provisio

of the preceding paragraph.

, and national ID numbers (or passport

numbers in the case of foreign

he nationals) of all persons involved in th
planning or implementation of any
merger, demerger, acquisition, or
transfer of another company's shares
prior to disclosure of the information.

. Dates of material events: Including th
signing of any letter of intent or
memorandum of understanding, the
hiring of a financial or legal advisor, th
execution of a contract, and the

ent convening of a board of directors

ial meeting.

3. Important documents and minutes:
Including merger, demerger,
acquisition, and share transfer plans,
any letter of intent or memorandum of
understanding, material contracts, an
minutes of Board of Directors’
meetings.

an When participating in a merger,

the demerger, acquisition, or transfer of

ns another company's shares, a compan

that is listed on an exchange or has it

within 2 days counting inclusively fron
the date of passage of a resolution by
the board of directors, report (in the
prescribed format and via the
Internet-based information system) th
information set out to the FSC for
recordation.

Where any of the companies
participating in a merger, demerger,
acquisition, or transfer of another
company's shares is neither listed on
exchange nor has its shares traded o

an OTC market, the company(s) so

df. Basic identification data for personnel:

shares traded on an OTC market shall,

Including the occupational titles, names,

11

)

[

-

D

an

listed or traded shall sign an agreems

nt




Before Revised Revised Version

Description

with such company whereby the latter
is required to abide by the provisions |of

the preceding two paragraphs.

Article 30:The procedure shall be subject tg Article 30:The procedure shall be subjedt1. Modified with

the agreement of the Audit Committee, to the agreement of the Audit

the Procedures

after it has been submitted to the Board ¢f Committee, after it has been submittedfor Acquisition

Directors for adoption, it shall be to the Board of Directors for adoption,| or Disposal of

implementedvith the consent of the
shareholders’ meeting, and same as the

amendment. Where the position of

independent director has been credugd

the company, if an independent director
objects to or expresses reservations abo
any matter, it shall be recorded in the

minutes of the Board of Directors meetin

Where an Audit Committee has been

establishedn accordance with the
provisions of the Company Act, when the¢
procedures for the acquisition and dispo

of assets are adopted or amended, they

shall be approved by more than half of al

audit committee members and submitted
the board of directors for a resolution. If
approval of more than half of all Audit
Committee members as required in the
preceding paragraph is not obtained, the
procedures may be implemented if
approved by more than two-thirds of all
directors, and the resolution of the audit
committee shall be recorded in the minut

of the Board of Directors meeting.

5a

es

to director's opinionlf an independent

it shall be implemented with the consenAssets, article 6

of the shareholders’ meeting, and same
as the amendment. If any director
expresses dissent and it is contained

the minutes or a written statement, the

company shall also submit the directof's

dissenting opinion to the Audit

Committee. When the procedures for

the acquisition and disposal of assets

are submitted for discussion by the

Board of Directors pursuant to the

preceding paragraph, The Board of

Directors shall take into full

consideration each independent

director is objects to or expresses

reservations about any matter, it shalllbe

—+

recorded in the minutes of the board ¢
directors meeting.
When the procedures for the acquisition
and disposal of assets are adopted o
amended they shall be approved by

more than half of all audit committee
members and submitted to the Board|of
Directors If approval of more than half

of all audit committee members as

Uy

required in the preceding paragraph i
not obtained, the procedures may be
implemented if approved by more than
two-thirds of all directors, and the
resolution of the Audit Committee shall
be recorded in the minutes of the Bog
of Directors meeting.

The terms "all audit committee

members" and "all directors" in t




Before Revised

Revised Version

Description

paragraph 3 shall be counted as the

actual number of persons currently

holding those positions.
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Sitronix Technology Corp.

hment 8

Comparison Table for the Procedures for Financial [@rivatives Transactions

Before and After Revision

Before Revision Revised Version Description

Article 2: Trading Principles and Guidelines Article 2: Trading Principles and Guidelines 1. Modified
1. Types of financial derivatives to be tradedl. Types of financial derivatives to be traded| the

refer to instruments that derive their value refer to forward contracts, options contractsapplication

from the performance of underlying assets, futures contracts, leverage contracts, or swap
interest or currency exchange rates, indexes or contracts, whose value is derived from a | International
others. Such instruments include swaps specifiedinterest rate, financial instrument | Financial
options, _futurescontracts,_leverageontracts, price, commodity priceforeign exchange | Reporting
forwards and various combinationthereof. rate, index of prices or rates, credit rating ¢rStandards
Forwards referred to herein exclude insurance, credit index, or other variahler hybrid (IFRS) No. 9
performance, post-sales service, long-term contracts combining the above contracts; or‘Financial
lease and long-term sales/procurement hybrid contracts or structured products Instruments”
contracts. containing embedded derivativdthe term | , amended
If the company is engaged in these types of "forward contracts" does not include Section 1
financial derivatives, its finance unit shall insurance contracts, performance contractsand text
submit a written report on the mode |of after-sales service contracts, long-term
operation, advantages and disadvantages of the leasing contracts, or long-term purchase
asset, and risk assessment method, for approval (sales) contracts.
of the chairman before a transaction is made If the company is engaged in these types of
2-5 (skipped). financial derivatives, its finance unit shall
submit a written report on the mode |of
operation, advantages and disadvantages of
the asset, and risk assessment method, for
approval of the chairman before a transaction
is made.
2-5 (skipped).

Article 5: Accounting Treatment Article 5: Accounting Treatment 1. Modified
Trading financial derivatives shall be Trading financial derivatives shall be g]pepncaﬂon
appropriately accounted for on a case-by-cage appropriately accounted for on a case-by-caé?i the )
basis according to the characteristics of the basis according to the characteristics of the ::r}:]egggg?nal
asset. Contingent assets or liabilities should alsoasset. Contingent assets or liabilities should Reporting
be recorded, while discounts and premiums also be recorded, while discounts and (?Laggirds
should be reasonably amortized. Accounting|  premiums should be reasonably amortized. ?ergtended

treatment shall be handled in accordance wit

International Financial Reporting Standards @

=

relevant regulations.

Accounting treatment shall be handled in

accordance with International Financial

Reporting Standards or relevant regulations.




Sitronix

Technology Corp.

Attachment 9

Comparison Table for the Procedures for Making Outvard Loans to Others

Before

and After Revision

Before Revision

Revised Version

Description

Article 2: Loaning Funds to Others

Article 2: Loaning Funds to Others

1. Modified
Under the Company Act - The company|  Under the Article 15 of the Company A¢t h th
Wi e
shall not loarfunds to any of its - The company shall not loan funtds Princiol
rinciples
shareholders or any other person except any of its shareholders or any other for Loani
or Loaning
under the following twaircumstances: person except under the following Funds t
unds to
1. Where an inter-company or inter-firm circumstances: oth
ers
business transaction calls for a loan 1. Where an inter-company or inter-firn
arrangement with the company business transaction calls for a loan
2. Where an inter-company or inter-firm arrangement with the company.
short-term financing facility is deemed 2. Where an inter-company or inter-firn
necessary by the company. short-term financing facility is deemed
The term "short-term" used in the necessary by the company.
preceding paragraph means a period of The term "short-term" used in the
one year, or the company's operating cycle precedingparagraph means a period of
(whichever is longer). one year, or the company's operating
cycle (whichever is longer).
If the person in charge of the company
violates the first requirement, he/she,
along with the borrower shall be jointly
and severally liable for damages, should
the company incur losses.
Article 4: The aggregate amount of loans andrticle 4: The aggregate amount of loans
. . : . . 1. Modified
maximum amount permitted to a single and maximum amount permitted to a
. with the
borrower single borrower
Principles
1. The total of accumulated loans granted 1. The total of accumulated loans grantied
for Loanin
shall not exceed 40% of the accountant's  shall not exceed 40% of the g
' . . . ' . . Funds to
financial statements in the previous year  accountant’s financial statements in the
” . . " . Others
for auditing the visa net worth of the previous year for auditing the visa net
Company. However, the total amountjof  worth of the Company. However, the
funds that can be loaned to others du¢ to  total amount of funds that can be
the need for short-term financing loaned to others due to the need for
between the company or a public short-term financing between the
company is based on the total amount of company or a public company is based

the company’s loanable funds.

2. Each inter-company loan of funds

on the total amount of the company’s

loanable funds.




Before Revision

Revised Version

De

scription

between foreign companies in which {

Company holds directly or indirectly;

100% of voting shares shall not excegd the Company holds directly or
40% of the accountant’s financial indirectly; 100% of the voting shares
statements in the previous year for shall not exceed 40% of the past yed
auditing the visa net worth of the accountant’s financial statements for
Company. The amount of an individual auditing the visa net worth of the
loan shall not exceed 50% of the amount  company, or the foreign companies
of company loanable funds. that directly and indirectly holds 100
3. Where an inter-company or inter-firm of the voting rights of the company, tl
business transaction calls for a loan amount of an individual loan shall ng
arrangement, the amount of an exceed 50% of the amount of compg
individual loan granted by the Company loanable funds.
to a company or business with business 3. Where an inter-company or inter-firn
relationships with the Company shall not  business transaction calls for a loan
exceed the business transaction amoiyint  arrangement, the amount of an
in the past year between the parties. The individual loan granted by the
“business transaction amount” refers to Company to a company or business
the amount of purchase or sale between  with business relationships with the
the parties, whichever is higher. Company shall not exceed the busin
4. Where funds are lent to a company of transaction amount in the past year
business with short-term financial need, between the parties. The “business
each individual loan shall not exceed transaction amount” refers to the
50% of the amount of company loanable  amount of purchase or sale between
funds. parties, whichever is higher.
4. Where funds are lent to a company

he 2. Each inter-company loan of funds

between foreign companies in which

business with short-term financi
need, each individual loan shall n
exceed 50% of the amount of compg

loanable funds.

Ar's

ne

ny

eSS

the

or

ot

ny

Article 11: Announcement and Reporting
Procedures

. The Company shall announce and report
previous month's loan balances of its he
office and Subsidiaries by the 10th day d
each month.
The term "Announcement and Report"
used in the Procedures means the proce
of entering data to the information
reporting website designated by the

Financial Supervisory Commission of

Article 11: Announcement and Reportin
Procedures
thel. The Company shall announce and
ad
f

report the previous month's loan
balances of its head office and
Subsidiaries by the 10th day of each
month.

2ss The term "Announcement and Report"

of entering data to the information

reporting website designated by the

used in the Procedures means the pro¢

g
1.

Taiwan_(hereinafter referred to as the

Financial Supervisory Commission of

Modified
with the
Principles
for Loaning
Funds to
Others

ess




Before Revision

Revised Version

FSCT).

2. The Company whose loans of funds reach

one of the following levels shall announce
and report such event within two days
commencing immediately from the date of

occurrence of the fact:

(1) The aggregate balance of loans to others

by the Company and its Subsidiaries
reaches 20% or more of the Company's
net worth as stated in its latest financjal

statement.
(2) The balance of loans by the Company

and its Subsidiaries to a single

11

enterprise reaches 10%or more of th
Company's net worth as stated in its
latest financial statement.
(3). The amount of new loans of funds by
hes
%

the Company or its Subsidiaries reac
NT$10 million or more, and reaches 2
or more of the Company's net worth as
stated in its latest financial statement|
3. If there is any reporting and announcem
required for the Company's Subsidiary

which is not a Taiwan public company, the
loaning funds and balance reach the

applicant’s announcement standard in
paragraph 3 of the previous operation
procedure, the Company shall follow the|

requirement on behalf of its Subsidiary.

Taiwan (hereinafter referred to as the
commission).
2. The Company whose loans of funds

reach one of the following levels shall

announce and report such event within

two days commencing immediately

O
s

from the date of occurrence of the fa

(1) The aggregate balance of loans to
others by the Company and its
Subsidiaries reaches 20% or morge
of the Company's net worth as
stated in its latest financial
statement.

(2) The balance of loans by the
Company and its Subsidiaries to
single enterprise reaches 10% or
more of the Company's net worth
stated in its latest financial
statement.

(3). The amount of new loans of fund

by the Company or its Subsidiaries

reaches NT$10 million or more,
and reaches 2% or more of the

Company's net worth as stated in|its

latest financial statement.

3. If there is any reporting and

announcement required for the
Company's Subsidiary which is not &
Taiwan public company, the loaning
funds and the balance reach the

applicant’'s announcement standard

=)

paragraph 3 of the previous operatio
procedure, the Company shall follow
the requirement on behalf of its

Subsidiary.

The term "date of occurrence of the faqgt

used in the Procedures refers to the date of

contract signing, date of payment, dates of

Board resolutions, or other dates that can

confirm the counterpart and monetary

amount of the transaction, whichever date

is earlier.

Description




Before Revision

Revised Version

Description

Article 14: Effectiveness and Amendment

The company intending to loan funds to
others shall formulate its Operational
Procedures for Loaning Funds to Otherg
compliance with these Regulations to be
ratified by the Board of Directors then
submitted to the Audit Committee and
during the shareholders' meeting for
approval. The same shall apply to any
amendments to the Procedures.

When the Operational Procedures for

Loaning Funds to Otheere submitted for|

discussion, the board of directors shall t
into full consideration each independent

director's opinion and shall include the

reasons for assent or dissent in the mint

of the Board of Directors' meeting.

Article 14: Effectiveness and Amendment

n

ke

Itescommittee members as required in the

Formulation of Operating Procedures

The company intending to loan funds to

others shall formulate its Operational

Procedures for Loaning Funds to Othe
in compliance with these Regulations t
be ratified by the Board of Directors, ar]
submitted to the Audit Committee for

approval of more than half of its

membersbefore finally submitting it
during the shareholders' meeting for
approval. The same shall apply to any

amendments to the Procedures.

If approval of more than half of all audit

preceding paragraph is not obtained, th

procedures may be implemented; if

approved by more than two-thirds of al

directors, and the resolution of the aud

committee shall be recorded in the

minutes of the board of directors’

meeting.

The terms "all audit committee member

in paragraph 1 and "all directors" in the

preceding paragraph shall be regarded

the actual number of persons currently

holding those positions.

When the Operational Procedures for
Loaning Funds to Others is submitted f
discussion, the board of directors shall
take into full consideration each
independent director's opinion;

independent directors' opinions

specifically expressing assent or dissent

and reasons for dissent shall be includé

in the minutes of the Board of Directorg

1. Modified
with the
Principles
for Loaning
Funds to
Others

1=

d

e

as

d

U

meeting.
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Attachment 10

Technology Corp.

Comparison Table for the Procedures for Endorsemenand Guarantee Before

and After Revision

Before Revision Revised Version Description
Article 2: Scope of endorsements/guaranteeArticle 2: Scope of endorsements/guarantees
1.dModified the
ethe scope of endorsements/guarantees use

The scope of endorsements/guarantees us
herein includes the following:
1. Financing endorsements/guarantees
includes:
(1) Bill discount financing
(2) Endorsements/guarantees for othe
companies’ financing needs
(3) Endorsements/guarantees of the n
issued by the Company to
non-financial institutions and entitie
for the Company’s financing needs

2. Endorsements/guarantees of custom

duties due from the Company or other

companies

3. Other endorsements/guarantees that
not classified as two previous types

4. The lien or mortgage provided by a
Company against its assets and
properties for guaranteeing another
company’s loan shall also be handled
accordance with the provisions of the

procedure.

herein includes the following:

1. Financing endorsements/guarantees
includes:

(1) Bill discount financing

(2) Endorsements/guarantees for oth

companies’ financing needs
btes (3) Endorsements/guarantees of the
notes issued by the Company to

non-financial institutions and

entities, for the Company’s

financing needs

are companies.

not classified as two previous types
The lien or mortgage provided by the
Company against its assets and prope

in for guaranteeing another company’s lo

the provisions of the procedure.

2. Endorsements/guarantees of custon

duties due from the Company or othe

3. Other endorsements/guarantees tha;

shall also be handled in accordance wi

Principles for

Loaning Funds tg

Others and the

Principles
Governing

er

Endorsements/G

uarantees

I

=

L are

ties

th

Article 3: Entities for which the Company
may make endorsements or guarantees

1. The Company may make

endorsements/guarantees for the followi

companies:

(1) A company that the Company does
business with

(2) A company in which the Company

directly and indirectly holds more than

50% of the voting shares

(3) A company that directly and indirectly

Article 3: Entities for which the Company

may make endorsements or guarantees

1. The Company may make

ng endorsements/guarantees for the

following companies:

(1) A company that the Company does
business with

(2) A company in which the Company

50% of the voting shares

directly and indirectly holds more thg

1. Modified the
Principles for
Loaning Fundg
to Others and
the Principles
Governing
Endorsements

N Guarantees
|

(3) A company that directly and indirect
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holds more than 50% of voting sharegin  holds more than 50% of voting shares
the Company in the Company

2. Companies in which the Company holdg 2. Companies in which the Company holds
90% or more of voting shares directly or|  90% or more of voting shares directly o
indirectly, may make indirectly, may make
endorsements/guarantees for each othef, endorsements/guarantees for each other,
and the amount of endorsements or and the amount of endorsements or
guarantees may not exceed 10% of the net guarantees may not exceed 10% of the net
worth of the Company, provided that this  worth of the Company, provided that this
restriction does not apply to restriction shall not apply to
endorsements/guarantees made between endorsements/guarantees made between
companies in which the Company holds| companies in which the Company holds
100% of voting shares directly or indirectly. 100% of voting shares directly or

3. The company is mutually protected indirectly.
according to the contractual requirements “"Subsidiary" and "parent company" as
based on the contractual requirements of referred to in the Procedures shall be
the inter-department or co-creation of the  determined according to the Regulations

contractor, or due to the joint investment

relationship. All contributing shareholde

endorse the invested company accordin

their shareholding ratio, or the performar

guarantee of the pre-sales contract in

accordance with the Consumer Protectia

Act. Those mentioned above are not sub

to restrictions specified in the preceding

two paragraphs, which can be endorsed

. “Capital contribution” referred to in the

preceding sentence means capital

contributed directly by the Company, or

through a company in which the Company

holds 100% of voting shares.

"Subsidiary” and "parent company"” as
referred to in the Procedures shall be

determined according to the Regulations
Governing the Preparation of Financial

Reports by Securities Issuers of Taiwan
"Net worth" as referred to in the Procedu
means equity attributable to owners of t
parent company specified in the balance

sheet.

(€S

Governing the Preparation of Financial
rs Reports by Securities Issuers of Taiwa
j to "Net worth" as referred to in the
ce Procedures means equity attributable t
n the balance sheet.

ect

e

owners of the parent company specified in

Article 5: Hierarchy of decision-making

Article Bierarchy of decision-making

1. Modified the
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Revised Version

Description

authority and delegation thereof
. When the Company makes any
endorsements and/or guarantees, the

Finance Unit shall submit the evaluation

authority and delegation thereof
. When the Company makes any
endorsements and/or guarantees, the

Finance Unit shall submit the evaluatior

results made in accordance with Article
pursuant to the resolution approved by t
Board of Directors. It shall take into full

consideration each Independent Directo

opinions, and shall include the reasons f

assent or dissent in the minutes of the Ba

I

results made in accordance with Article

e and approved by the resolution of the

Board of Directors. It shall take into full

s consideration, the opinions of each

or independent director; independent

arddirectors' opinions specifically expressit

meeting.However, due to business need
the Board of Directors has to authorize t
chairman to set an amount less than NT
million, which would be decided upon,
implemented and reported during the lat
Board of Directors’ meeting.

. In case there is a need to exceed the ab
limit to accommodate business

requirements in accordance with the

endorsement limispecified in Article 4 of
the procedure, a resolution of the Board
Directors should be obtained and over h
of all directors should jointly acknowledg
the potential loss that may result from su
excess. The Board of Directors should a
revise the Procedures and have them
ratified during the Shareholders' Meeting
the revised Procedures are not ratified at
Shareholders' Meeting, the Board of
Directors should propose a plan indicatin
timetable for withdrawing the excess
amount.

. Companies in which the Company holds
90% or more of voting shares directly or

indirectly, may make

endorsements/guarantees for each other

and the amount of endorsements or
guarantees may not exceed 10% of the
worth of the Company, provided that this

restriction shall not apply to

Py

assent or dissent and the reasons for

ne dissent shall be included in the minutes

550the Board of Directors' meetingowever,

due to business requirements, the Boar
est Directors has to authorize the chairman
set an amount less than NT$50 million,
ovewhich would be decided upon,
implemented, and reported during the
latest Board of Directors’ meeting.
2. In case there is a need to exceed the a
of limit to accommodate business
alf requirements, a resolution of the Board
e Directors should be obtained and over
ch of all directors should acknowledge the
so potential loss that may result from such
excess. The Board of Directors should
If also revise the Procedures and have th
theratified during the Shareholders' Meetin
If the revised Procedures are not ratifieq
g a the Shareholders' Meeting, the Board o
Directors should propose a plan indicat
a timetable for withdrawing the excess
amount.
3. Companies in which the Company hold
90% or more of voting shares directly o
, indirectly, may make
endorsements/guarantees for each oth
net and the amount of endorsements or
guarantees may not exceed 10% of the

worth of the Company, provided that th

endorsements/guarantees made betwee

Principles for
Loaning Fundg
to Others and
' the Principles
6, Governing
Endorsements

Guarantees

g
of

d of

bove

of

alf

em
g.

] at
f

ng

n restriction shall not apply to
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Description

companies in which the Company holds,
directly or indirectly, 100% of voting

shares.

endorsements/guarantees made betwe

100% of voting shares directly or

indirectly.

companies in which the Company holds

Article 6: Procedures for handling

endorsements/guarantees

1-7 (skipped)

8. In cases wherein an entity for which the
company makes any
endorsements/guarantees is a subsidiar
whose net worth is lower than half of its
paid-in capital, the Company may requirs
the endorsee/guarantee company to pro

videperiodically track the financial statemen

Article 6: Procedures for handling

endorsements/guarantees

1-7 (skipped)

8. In cases in which an entity for which thg
company makes any
endorsements/guarantees is a subsidig
whose net worth is lower than half of itg

paid-in capital, the company shall

collateral, and shall specify it as an

operational control item.

In the case of a Subsidiary with shares hay
no par value or a par value other than NT$

for the paid-in capital in the aforementione

paid-in capital in excess of par shall be

substituted.

10, to be submitted regularly to the Audit
)|

calculation, the sum of the share capital pludn the case of a Subsidiary with shares

any irreqularity is found, there should b

a written report detailing the

ingrecommendations and response measu

Committee.

having no par value or a par value other t
NT$10, for the paid-in capital in the

aforementioned calculation, the sum of th
share capital plus paid-in capital in excess

par shall be substituted.

D

of the object of endorsement/guarantes.

D

nan

1. Modified the
Principles for
Loaning Fundsg
to Others and
the Principles

ry

Governing

Endorsements

Guarantees
ts

res,

D

Article 9: Announcement and Reporting

Procedures

1. As long as the Company's shares are tré
on the emerging stock market or listed o
the Taipei Exchange (TPEX) or the Taiw.
Stock Exchange in Taiwan, the Compan
shall announce and report its previous
month's balance of endorsements /
guarantees as well as its subsidiaries’ by
10th day of each month. The term
"Announcement and Report" used in the
Procedures means the process of enteri
data to the information reporting website
designated by the Financial Supervisory

Commission of Taiwan.

dedAs long as the Company's shares are
n

an listed on the Taipei Exchange (TPEX) 0
y

Article 9: Announcement and Reporting

Procedures

traded on the emerging stock market of

the Taiwan Stock Exchange in Taiwan,
the Company shall announce and repor|
previous month's balance of endorsemg
the/ guarantees as well as its subsidiaries’

the 10th day of each month. The term

"Announcement and Report" used in th
ng Procedures means the process of ente
data to the information reporting websit
designated by the Financial Supervisor

Commission of Taiwan.

1. Modified the
Principles for
Loaning Fundg
to Others and

=

the Principles
.._Governing
tits

2nts
Guarantees
by

Endorsements

ng

D

2. As long as the Company's shares are tré

ad2dAs long as the Company's shares are
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Description

on the emerging stock market or listed o

the Taipei Exchange (TPEX) or the Taiw.

Stock Exchange in Taiwan, the Compan

whose balance of endorsements/guaran

reaches one of the following levels shall

announce and report such event within t

days commencing immediately from the

date of occurrence:

(1). The aggregate balance of
endorsements/guarantees by the
Company and its subsidiaries reache
50% or more of the Company's net
worth as stated in its latest financial
statement.

(2). The balance of

endorsements/guarantees by the

Company and its subsidiaries for a

single enterprise reaches 20% or mo

of the Company's net worth as stated
its latest financial statement.

(3). The balance of endorsements /

guarantees by the Company and its

subsidiaries for a single enterprise

reaches NT$10 million or more and t

aggregate amount of all endorsemen

guarantees for, long-term investment

and balance of loans to, such enterprise

reaches 30% or more of Company's

worth as stated in its latest financial

statement.
(4). The amount of new endorsements of
guarantees made by the Company ol
subsidiaries reaches NT$30 million o
more, and reaches 5% or more of the
Company's net worth as stated in its
latest financial statement.

3. The Company shall also announce and

reporton behalf of any of its subsidiaries
that is not a public company of the Repul

of China, any standardisat such subsidiar

n traded on the emerging stock market of

an listed on the Taipei Exchange (TPEX) 0

y
leegshe Company whose balance of

the Taiwan Stock Exchange in Taiwan,

endorsements/guarantees reaches one

wo the following levels shall announce and

report such event within two days
commencing immediately from the date
occurrence:

(1). The aggregate balance of
endorsements/guarantees by the
Company and its subsidiaries reach
50% or more of the Company's net
worth as stated in its latest financial
statement.

(2). The balance of

endorsements/guarantees by the

re Company and its subsidiaries for a

in single enterprise reaches 20% or m
of the Company's net worth as state
in its latest financial statement.

(3). The balance of endorsements /

guarantees by the Company and its

ne subsidiaries for a single enterprise

ts/  reaches NT$10 million or more and

in, the aggregate amount of all

endorsements / guarantees for,
net long-term investment in, and balanc|

of loans to, such enterprise reaches

as stated in its latest financial

ts Sstatement.

(4).

r The amount of new endorsements (
guarantees made by the Company

its subsidiaries reaches NT$30 milli
or more, and reaches 5% or more o
the Company's net worth as stated i
its latest financial statement.
li8. The Company shall announce and repg

y on behalf of any of its subsidiaridsat is

30% or more of Company's net worth

=

of

of

pre

Dr

DN
f

5

DIt

is required to announce and report purst

antnot a public company of the Republic o




Before Revision Revised Version Description

to subparagraph 4 of the Principles China, any matters that such subsidiary is

Governing Endorsements/Guarantees. required to announce and report pursuant

The term "date of occurrence " used in the to subparagraph 4 of the preceding

Procedures refers to the date of contract  paragraph.

signing, date of payment, dates of Board of The term "date of occurrence" used in the

Directors' resolutions, or other dates that Procedures refers to the date of contract

can confirm the counterpart and monetaty signing, date of payment, dates of Board

amount of the transactipwhichever date

is earlier.

that can confirm the counterpart of t
endorsement/guarantee, and mone
amount of the transaction, whichever d

is earlier.

of Directors' resolutions, or other dates

he

fary
ate

Article 12: Effectiveness and Amendment

The procedures shall be passed by the B

of Directors and submitted to the AudiPirectors, submitted to the Audit Committee

Committee, then to the shareholders’ mee
for approval. The same shall apply to g

amendments to the Procedures.

When endorsements / guarantees are mad
others, the Company shall take into full
consideration the opinions of each
independent director; independent director
opinions specifically expressing assent or

dissent and the reasons for dissent shall b

included in the minutes of the Board of

Directors' meeting.

Article 12: Effectiveness and Amendment

hdfe procedures shall be passed by the Boal

tify approval of more than half of its membe
rgnd then to the shareholders’ meeting. The
same shall apply to any amendments to the

Procedures.

of all audit committee members as requi

S'more than two-thirds of all directors, ti

procedures may be implemented, and

2 resolution of the Audit Committee shall &

recorded in the minutes of the Board

Directors’ meeting.

paragraph 1 and "all directors" in the

preceding paragraph shall be counted as

actual number of persons currently holdin

those positions.
When endorsements / guarantees are mg

for others in accordance with paragraph 1
the Company shall take into full
consideration the opinions of each

independent director; independent directd

opinions specifically expressing assent or

dissent and the reasons for dissent shall I

included in the minutes of the Board of

Directors' meeting.

elfeipproval is not granted by more than h

in the preceding paragraph and approved

The terms "all audit committee members"|i

alf

ne

pe

of

de

he

d'o

red
1 by

the

the

odified the
Principles for
Loaning Fundsg
to Others and
the Principles
Governing
Endorsements

Guarantees
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